May 2, 2017

: NOTICETO STOCKHOLDERS:
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. : '
Felipe L. Gozon
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya :
Artemio V. Panganiban
Manuel P. Quiogue
Felipe 8. Yalong

. Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holdings, Inc. is on
May 26, 2017 (Friday) bt 10:00 a.m. at Dario (formerly Balducci} G/F Serendra, Bonifacio
Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig Gity 0 consider, discuss or vote on the following:

Call to order

Certification and Notice of Quorum .

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on September 30, 2016.
Report of the President ‘ -
Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

Election of the [External Auditor : ‘ ;
Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting
Adjournment !

WooNToLELN =

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submittecll to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De la Costa
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City. ‘ :

For purposes .of the meéting, only stockholders of record as of April 26, 2017 shall be entitled to
vote. ' ! '

The Organizational Meéii‘ng of the Board of Directors shall be heid immediately after the Annual
Stockheiders’ Meeting. ﬂThank you.

For the Board of Director?s:

ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR
Corporate Secretaty



We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you afe unable to attend the meeting but would
like to be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 22, 2017. You may
deliver the proxy or send it in advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies
shall be held on May 24, 2017 at 10;00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center. ' '

PROXY

I/We hereby name and appoint . or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Dario (formerly Balducci), G/F Serendia, Ronifacio Glebal City, Fort Ponifacio,
Taguig City on Friday, May 26, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment
thereof. ‘

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held



10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
AMENDED SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
' OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Check the appropriate box:

[ ] Preliminary Information Statement

[ v ]Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES
SEC Identification Number‘08200602356

BIR Tax Identification ‘Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office ‘ Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 9827777

Date, time and piace of the meeting of security holders

DATE : May 26, 2017
TIME 10:00 a.m. ' ‘
PLACE: Dario (formerly) Balducci, G/F Serendlra, Bonifacic Glohal City,

Fort Ronifacio, Taguig City

Approximate date on which the Informatfion Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

May 5, 2017

in case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE
Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE '
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11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to
corporate registrants): . :

Title of Each Cl-asé- Number of Shares of Common Stock

Qutstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding
Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) -832,110,1 00

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This information Statement dated May 5, 2017, is being furnished 1o the stockholders of record
of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 26, 2017 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date May 26, 2017
Time 10:00 a.m.
Place: Dario (formerly Balducci), GiF Serendra, Ronifacio Glohal City,

Fort Ponifacic, Taguig City

(b) Approximate date on which copies of the information statement are first to be sent {o the
security holders:

May 5, 2017



ttem 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1) in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation . has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate
. property or assets; (3)in case of merger or consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or business or for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the term of corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in °
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing" corporate actions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the
corporation for the payment of the fair value of hisfits shares within 30 days after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shall be deemed a
walver of such right. 'If the -proposed action is implemented, the corporation shall paytoa
stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
-payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
failing which, his/its appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. tpon
payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the

corporation. ‘

From the time a demand for payment of fair value-until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such
shares, including voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights
shall be restored. ‘ '

None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by

security holders -of their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the
Philippines.

item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b} No Director has informed the Company of his oppositiorﬁ to any matter to be acted upon.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) GMA Holdings, Inc. (“the Company”) has 10,000 common shares subscribed and
outstanding as of April 30, 2017. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each common share held as of the established record date. = -

(b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 26, 2017 are entitled to
notice of and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Mesting.

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares
for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit: provided, that the total number of votes caist by him shall not exceed the total
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be
elected. ' :

(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management:
Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of April 30, 2017

As of April 30, 2017, the f'ollowin_g persons owned at least 5% of the Company’s outstanding
commaon shares:

Title of Name, Address of . | Name of Beneficial Citizenship No. of Percent-
class Record Qwner and Owner and : Shares age of
Relationship with Relationship with 1 Held Class
, ‘ Company Record Owner - ‘
Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30

. Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Common | Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. The Record owneris | Filipino 3,330 33.30
Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Common | Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30 |,
Unit 5 5D Tower One, One | the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Total 9,920 99.90

Feiipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant
stockholders of the Company.



Security Ownership of Management as of April 30, 2017:

As of April 30, 2017, the Company’s directors and senior officers owned an aggregate of
96,096 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 99.96% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding common capital stock. :

Title of Name of Amount and | Citizenship | Percentage
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of - of Class
Beneficial
_ Ownership | .
Common Felipe L. Gozon Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330 ' ‘
Common Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330 .
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330 ]
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct . Filipino .04
‘ 4 ,
Common Jaime C. Laya : Direct + Filipino 01
_ . , :
Common . Felipe S. Yalong Direct | . Filipino 01
1
Total 99,996 ‘ 99.96

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of shares under a voting trust
or similar arrangement. : '

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangement which may have resui'ted in a change in control
of the Company during the period covered by this report. :

Foreign Equity

The Company’s equity (consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos. While the
PDRs issued by the Company may be owned by any person regardless of citizenship or
nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction under the Philippine
Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass .media- companies. As a result, the
Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares) resuiting from an exercise of the
PDRs may only be issued to Philippine citizens or corporations, cooperatives or associations
wholly owned and managed by Philippine citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy
economic rights upon occurrence of certain events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they
will not have any voting rights in respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until
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exercise of the PDR, be retained and exercised by GHI or the Company. Pending exercise of
the PDRs, the Shares deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in
the name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged by
the Issuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and for the benefit of the Holders as
security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to the Pledge. Until
an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the relevant PDR, will retain
and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.

item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2017-2018): S -

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G, Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban {Independent Director)

All the nominees. are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto -
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent
directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban. o

The Company's By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee before the date of the regular annual meeting
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the qualifications of the
nominees and approved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company's stockholders mesting. A director who is elected fo
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of April 30,
2017, the Company's Board of Directors and Senior Management were composed of the

following:



Board of Directors ‘ Senior Management
Year Year
Directors and Senior . . L Position e Position
Management & Nationality Position was Position was Age
Assumed Assumed
) b Chairman/
Felipe L. Gozon Filipino Diractor 2007 N/A CNA L TT
Gilberio R. Duavit, Jr. - Filipino__| Director ‘ 2007 President/Chief Executive Officer 2007 53
Joel Marcele G. Jimensz Filipino | Director 2007 N/A NZA 53
Chief Financial Qfficer/Chief
Felipe S. Yalong Filipino | Corporate Treasurer 2007 | Cperating Officer 2012 80
Artemic V. Panganif)an Filipinoe | Independent Director 2009 N/A N/A 80
Jaime C. Laya " Filipino | Independent Director 2008 | N/A N/A 78‘
Ronaldo P. Mastri Filipino | N/A na | CompollerGhief Accountng 1 5p07 | 51
] . Officer ‘
Anna Teresa M. Gozon- e ‘
Abrogar Filipino | Corporate Secretary 2007 N/A N/A a5
Roberto O. Parel Filipine | N/A ' NIA ‘gf‘;ﬁ:gresmenuo"mp'ia”"e | 2013 | e

The following are descriptions of the business experience of each of the Company’s directors,
officers and senior management:

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 77 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of GMA Network, Inc.

Atty. Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEO of GMA New Media, Inc. and
FLG Management and Development Corp.; Chairman of Alta Productions Group, Inc., Citynet
Network Marketing and Productions, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corp., Philippine
Entertainment Portal, Inc., RGMA Network, inc., and Justitia Realty and Management Corp.;
President of Gozon Development Corporation, BGE Holdings, Inc., and Lex Realty Corporation,
Director of, among other companies, Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry, Chamber
of Commerce of the Philippine Islands; and Vice President/Treasurer of Antipolo Agri-Business
and Land Development Corp. He serves as Ghairman of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso
Foundation, Inc., Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation, Inc.; and The Potter and Clay Christian
Schoo! Foundation, Inc.; Chairman and President of Gozon Foundation: and Trustee of
Bantayog ng mga Bayani Foundation. Gozon is also an Advisory Board Member of the Asian

Television Awards.

Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievements in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entreprensur —
Philippines (2004} by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMAY) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005), Qutstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social

Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City
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Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon
(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni Association (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil
Aeronautics Board (2012), Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
International Makati (2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapter
(International Honor Society) (2013), Visionary Management CEQ Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013), Lifetime Achievement Award given by UP Preparatory High School Alumni (2014},
Entrepreneurship Excellence Award and Best Broadcast CEO Award given by BizNews Asia
(2014), The Rotary Golden Wheel Award for Corporate Media Management given by Rotary
International District 3780 and Quezon City Government {(2014), and Global Leadership Award
for Excellence in Media Sector (first Filipino to win the award) given by The Leaders
International together with the-American Leadership Development Association in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia (2015). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University. of the Philippines (among
the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitted to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 53 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of
GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since. 1999 and is currently the
Chairman of the Network's Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the
Chairman of the Board of GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Waorldwide, Inc. He also serves
as President and CEO of GMA Holdings, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film
Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and Investments, Inc. He is the President and a Director
of Group Management and Development, Inc.; President and Director of MediaMerge Corp.,
Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New
Media, Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Mont-Aire Realty and
Development Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation,
Inc. and a Trustee of the Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. and the HERQ Foundation.

" Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez, Filipino, 53 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, inc.
since 2002. He is currently the Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee of GMA Network,
Inc., President and CEO of Menarco Holdings, and the Chief Executive Officer of Alta
Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., Scenarios,
Inc., and GMA Worldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the Board of Directors of
Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc.. He is also a Director of
Nuvoland Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is a Trustee of GMA Kapusoc

Foundation, Inc.

He was educated in' Los Angeles, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Adminisfration from Loyola Marymount University. He. also obtairned a Master's
Degree in Management from the Asian Institute of Management.
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Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 60 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of GMA Network, Inc. He has-been a Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from
GMA Network, Inc., he also serves as Director and Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc.,
Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Network Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., and Majalco Finance
and Investments, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of: RGMA Network, Inc., MediaMerge Corp.;
Executive Vice President of RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.: and Corporate Tréasurer
of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.. :

Yalong was named CFOQ of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from
the Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management, He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Dr. Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 78 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network,
Inc. since 2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust
Bank), Director of Ayala Land, Inc., Manila Water Company, Inc., and Philippine AXA Life
Insurance Company, Inc. He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc.
and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of St. Paul University - Quezon City,
Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of Manila, Yuchengco Museum,
Fundacién Santiago, Inc., Ayala Foundation, Inc., and other foundations. He writes a weekly

column for the Manila Bulletin.

He was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture -and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984;
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public
Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
International: he served as the firm's Chairman until  his retirement in 2004

He earned his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 1857; M.S. in Industrial
Management, Georgia [nstitute of Technology, 1960: Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 80 years old, has been an Independent
Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. In 1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme
Court and in 2005, he was appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until
December 2006. At present, he is also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company,
Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co., Petron
Carporation, Bank of the Philippine Islands, Asian Terminals, and a regular Director of Jollibee
Foods Corporation. He is also a Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Chairman, Board of
Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Adviser of Double Dragon Properties, Chairman of the
Board of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity, President of the Manila Cathedral Basilica
Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member,
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Advisory Board of the World Bank {Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of_Managemenf
Corporate Governance Council. He also is a column writer of The Philippine Daily Inquirer.

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plague of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic
leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
groups, religious movements and other non-government organizations, both local -and
international. ' ‘ :

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities. ‘

Anna Teresa G. Abrogar, Filipino, 45 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc.
since 2000. She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila
University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines
where she graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained ‘her Master of Laws from
Harvard University. :

She. is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and is an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught Taxation and

Legal History.

She is currently Programming Consultant to the Chairman/CEO of GMA Network, Inc. and the
President of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso
Foundation. ' '

Ronaldo P. Mastrili, Filipino, 51 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA Network, Inc.’s
Finance and ICT Departments. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business and
Economics degree, major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master in
Business Administration Program from the same university and completed the Executive
Development Program of the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public
Accountant with expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general
management. He was formerly the Assistant Vice President of Controllership of ABS-CBN and
also served as its Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also
worked with SGV and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key
positions in GMA Subsidiaries namely: Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings,
Treasurer of Alta Productions, Director of Script2010 and GMA Kapuso Foundation, and
Comptrolier of GMA Films, GMA Kapuso Foundation and GMA Worldwide.

Roberto O. Parel, Filipino, 81 years old, has been the Compliance Officer of the Company
since 2012. He is a Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila. His
practice areas include labor relations, natural resources and intellectual property. He is a
Director of Time-Life International Philippines, Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel
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Corporation, Ulugan Resources Moldings, Inc., Nickeline Resources Holdings, Inc., TMM
Management Inc. and Assetlex Development Company, Inc., Corporate Secretary of Alta
Productions Group, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc. and
GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc. : ,

He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Philosophy and a Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. Atty.
Parel further pursued legal studies through short programs at the Center of American and
International Law and the Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attended
a training program on Industrial Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of Invention and
Innovation and the Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan.”

Sianificant Employees

Although the Company will continue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Fe'lipe L. Gozon's sister,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marceio G. Jimenez.

Irivolvement in Certain Legal Procéedin@

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
Information Statement, there has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated o become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company: :

e Any filing of an insolvenoy or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the
insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

e Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, exc!uding traffic
violations and other minor offenses;

s Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting invelvement in any type of business,
securities, commodities, or banking activities; and '

o Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,
for violation of a securities or commodities law.
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Recignation of Directors , :
No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board -of Directors since the

date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on
matters relating to the Company’s operations, policies and practices.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Company engaged as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion
& Lucila (“BGEPAL") where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Atty. Gozon is the
Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company and BGEPAL are
currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is
done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company’s Initial
Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Selling Sharehoiders.
Please see Note 10 of the Company’s Financial Statements. ‘ :

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material transactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties on

an arm’s length basis.
ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following éets forth the summary of the Company’s compensation {0 its executive officers:

Name and Position

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer
Felipe S. Yalong Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Cfficer
Ronaldo P. Mastrili Chief Accounting Officer/ Comptroiier
Year Salaries Bonuses Other Total
(in (in Income (in
thousands) thousands) thousands)

CEOQ and the highest
compensated officers named
above

2014

2015
. 2016
2017
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(estimate)
Aggregate compensation paid to - -
all officers and directors as a 2014 - . -
group unnamed - ‘
' 2015 - - - -
2016 - - - -
2017 ‘
(estimate)

‘No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each director is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an amount of not more than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the
stockholders. ‘

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its e'xisting
directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-control Arrangements

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected to
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer's employment.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

(a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. ("SGV & Co.”) has acted as the Company's external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 26, 2017,

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions. '

The Company became publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms. Marydith
C. Miguel, partner of SGV & Co., 10 sign the Company’'s 2015 audited finangial
statements. L

(c) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial discFEpsure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on éccounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any
subsequent interim period. ‘ :
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(d) SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
covering the years 2016, 2015 and 2014 amounted to P75 thousand per year. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No

other fees of any nature were paid. ‘

(e) The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews the
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to the Board of

Directors.
The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Felipe S. Yalong (Corporate Treasurer)

Iltem 8.Compensation Plans
No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash

compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ltem 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.

ltem 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities
No action shall be taken with respect to the modification. of any class of securities of the

Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the
Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

Item 11. Financial and Other Informétion

In connection with ltem 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities

and Regulation Code:

a. Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2015 and 2016;

b. Management’s Discuséion and Analysis or plan of operation; and
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c. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of
securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance :

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar
matters.

ltem 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.

Item 14. Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capltal or surplus account

~of the Company

D. OTHER MATTERS

Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Annual Report .of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2016.

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockhélders' Meeting held on September
30, 2016. The salient matters are summarized as follows: ‘

(1) Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting held on August 13,
2015.

) Report of the President

) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year

) Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

) Election of the External Auditor

c. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the period
covering September 30, 2016 to May 26, 2017 adopted in the ordinary course of
business involving

> Approval of borrowmgs opening of accounts and bank transacnons '

> Appointment of signatories;

> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last August 13,

2015

> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’
Meeting
Approval of the Financial Statements

vV
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ltem 16, Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitfed in the meeting will require the vote of the security holders.

Item 17. Amendmeht of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

No action is to be taken with respect to any amendment of the registrant's charter, by-laws or other
documents. .

Item 18. Othgr Proposed Action
(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers:

(i) Declaration on March 27, 2017 by the Company of cash distribution to
the PDR holders of Php 0.73 per PDR or the same dividend rate that will be paid
by GMA Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR
holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The
foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.73 per PDR shall be
distributed to the PDR Holders as of April 20, 2017 and will be paid out to the
PDR holders on May 16, 2017;

(ii) Declaration on April 8, 2016 by the Company of cash distribution to the
PDR holders of P0.40 per PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA

Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ .
proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing
cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR was distributed to PDR Holders
as of April 25, 2016 and paid out to the PDR holders on May 17, 2016;

(iii} Declaration of Cash Dividends of P0.27 per share by GMA Network Inc.
on April 2, 2014 to PDR Holders. The record date for the PDR holders who were
entitled to receive the cash amounts was on April 24, 2014 (Thursday) [the same
record date for GMA Network, Inc. stockholders] and the cash amounts were
distributed 1o the PDR holders on May 20, 2014 (Tuesday).

(iv) All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering September 30, 2016 to May 26, 2017 adopted in the ordinary

course of business involving
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last September

30,.2016
> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements

(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, inciuding two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year ‘

(c) Election of the External Auditor .
18



Iltem 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
of the Company’s common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote ‘of at least two thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except.as to the election of directors. ' :

(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5) nominees
garmering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as
he shall see fit: provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot, If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands. -

The Corporaté Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret ballot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to
be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes to furnish said
stockholder with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the following:

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastrili
Chief Accounting Officer
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Copies of the latest Unaudited Interim Financial Statements will be made available
to each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting.
Such report can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard
copies of the company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upcn
request five (5) calendar days before the said meeting.

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that
the information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in

the City of Makati on " 2 AL

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By: ‘

" ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR

Corporate Secretary



MANAGEMENT'S REPORT

l, - Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company
has no subsidiaries.

The Philippine Deposit Receipts (“PDRs") issued by the Company were listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE") on July 30, 2007. S ‘

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the .
PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acquisiton and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, 'New
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

The Company had no fullime employees as of April 30, 2017 and does not anticipate in hiring
any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the Company.

Il. Properties

The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property
and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months. '

Il Legal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding.
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V. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters |

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating to GMA Network, inc. Commeoen Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

2016 Stock Prices (GMAP)
Period in Highest Lowest
2015 ' Closing Closing
1Q 7.20 6.00
2Q 7.20 6.10
3Q 6.36 6.00
4Q 6.20 5.85

The Companys Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange since 2007. The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading
date, April 27, 2017, is P5.75 for GMAP (PDRs).

Holders

The total number.of shareholders as of April 30, 2017 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of April 30, 2017 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the common sharehoiders of

are listed hereunder:

Name of Shareholder No. of $hares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon ' 3,330 33.30
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. 3,330 33.30
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez _ 3,330 ‘ 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban 4 _ .04
Manuel P. Quiogue ' 4 04
Jaime C. Laya 1 - o
Felipe S. Yalong . 1 .01

Total 10,000 100.00

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, ofr a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
shall determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the

Company shall be declared.
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Distribution of GMA Network, Inc. Cash Dividends to the Company’s PDR Holders

On March 27, 2017, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of Php 0.73

per share or the same dividend rate that will be paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common,
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc.. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.73 per PDR shall
be distributed to the PDR holders as of April 20, 2017 and will be paid out to the PDR holders

on May 16, 2017,

On April 8, 2016, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of P0.40 per
PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR was
distributed to PDR Holders as of April 25, 2016 and was paid out to the PDR holders on May
17, 2016. '

On August 25, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
" share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to alt shareholders of
record as of April 24, 2015, These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231 53 million to all shareholders of record
as of April 24, 2014, These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014. '

Cash Dividends to Common Shareholders

On March 27, 2017, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php
/1,000,000.00 cash dividends from the retained earnings of the Company as of December 31,
2016 and will be paid out to the Company’s commons stockholders on or before May 9, 2017.

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the Company's declaration and distribution of Php 600
thousand dividends from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015 and
was paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.

On August 25, 2015, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 500
thousand from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015. This was paid
out to the Company’s common stockholders on October 21, 2015. :

The company has no dividend declaration in 2014 and 2013.

The Company has not and will not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs

are outstanding.
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Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by -
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the 'succeeding year. Amounts remaining in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares,  the Company shall grant additionai PDRs to holders in respect of such
distributions. - :

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three
years.

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated into this information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine GAAP.

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any other
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares
received by the Company (or the Pledge Trustee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses then due (including but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating
Expenses”) for the current and preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year (as cerlified by an
independent auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR Issuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such
cash dividends are received by the Company.
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On April 8, 2016, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of P0.40 per
PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA Network, Inc. totaling to Php 338.54
million to all shareholders of record as of April 25, 2016.. These were remitted to the PDR

holders on May 17, 2016.

On March 30, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as at April 24, 2015. These were remitted {o PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,

in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to all shareholders of record
as at April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014,

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
The Company’s key performance indica{ors are focused on the dividends it receives to meet

PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year's operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Holdings Inc,

For the vears ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a total comprehensive income -amounting to P1.05
million, a reversal from last year's P91 thousand total comprehensive loss due to this year’s
unrealized gain on Available-for-sale (AFS) investment of P20 thousand, a reversal from last
year's unrealized loss of P726 thousand, brought about by changes in its fair value. Likewise,
net income after tax amounted to P1,03 million, an increase of P397 thousand from last year's
net income after tax of P635 thousand mainly due to higher revenues coupled with lower
operating expenses. This year's revenues reached P2.51 million, an improvement of 17% or
P363 thousand from last year's level of P2.14 million mainly brought about by the increase in
exercise fees generating P508 thousand from the conversion of 11,387,000 PDR shares to
common shares compared with P89 thousand from the 1,995,900 PDR shares converted
during the same period of last year. Interest income, however, declined to P2.00 million in 2016
versus P2.05 million in 2015 due to lower interest income earned on cash placement.

Operating expenses for the year 2016 totaled P1.06 million vis-a-vis P1.09 million in 2015
mainly due to the decrease in professional fees 10 P308 thousand versus P400 thousand in
2015. On the other hand, listing fees amounted to P614 thousand, an-increase. of 7% as
compared with P576 thousand in 2015 due to the offshoot of higher market cap. Local business
tax went up to P32 thousand from last year's P20 thousand due to higher 2015 tax base used

for 2016 payment.

On March 27, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s cash dividend declaration
of P1.00 million to its common stockholders from the retained earnings of the Company as of

December 31, 2016. S
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Einancial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.71 million, a tad higher than last year's
P48.22 million primarily dug to the increase in accounts receivable caused by more conversion
of PDR shares to common shares in 2016.

For the vears ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 -

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a pre-tax income of P1.05 million, an increase of P443
thousand from last year's pre-tax income of P607 thousand mainly due to higher revenues
despite higher operating expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P635 thousand
versus P350 thousand net income after tax in 2014. This year's revenues reached P2.14
“million, an improvement of 30% or P490 thousand from last year's leve! of P1.65 million mainly
brought about by the climb in interest income of P2.05 million. For 2015, a total of P2.00 million
PDR shares were converted to common shares which generated exercise fees of P89 thousand
vis-a-vis P9.16 million PDR shares in 2014, for an exercise fee of P409 thousand.

Operating expenses inched up by 5% to P1.09 million from P1.05 million in 2014 due to higher
professional fees partly negated by lower PSE listing fees and miscellaneous expenses.
Professional fees settled at P400 thousand, 95% more than the P205 thousand posted a year
ago which included payment to BGE for the amendment of Articles of Incorporation (to
_incorporate complete address). On the other hand, listing fees of P576 thousand dropped by
17% from P890 thousand in 2014 as an offshoot of lower market cap. :

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the company’s declaration and distrib.ution of PG00
thousand dividends from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015 and
will be paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.

Einancial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.52 million, a tad lower from last year's
P48.91 million primarily due to the decrease in the fair market value of Available-for-sale
investment (under non-current asset).

For the vears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a pre-tax income of P607 thousand, a turnaround from
last year's losses of P139 thousand as a result of higher revenues coupled with lower operating
expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P350 thousand, an increase of P730
thousand from P380 thousand loss in 2013. This year's revenues reached P1.65 million, an
improvement of 37% or P446 thousand from last year's level of P1.21 million mainly brought
about by the conversion of 9.16 million PDR shares to common shares versus none in

comparative period.

On the other hand, operating expenses of P1.05 million decreased by 22% or P299 thousand
from P1.34 million in 2013 on account of lower professional fees and listing fees. Listing fees of
P690 thousand declined by 14% or P109 thousand as an offshoot of lower market cap.
Professional fees for the services of law firm, trust fees and audit fees went down by 42% to
only P280 thousand as a result of the reduced billing for legal and other corporate

housekeeping services.

On March 30, 2015, the management approved cash dividend declaration of P500 thousand to
stockholders of record as at December 31, 2014.
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Financial Condition. Total assets totaled P48.91 million, a tad higher than last year's P48.29
million due to purchase of TIER Il note, transferring P21.00 million cash equivalents to
Available-for-sale investment measured at fair value of P21.80 million. :

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

vi.

vii.

Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

As of December 31, 2016, there were no known trends, demands, commitments,
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

Events that will trigger direct or contingeht financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2016, there were no events which may trigger a direct or
contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company.

Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2018, there were no material commitmenfs for capital expenditures.

Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company’s results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and
preceding year's operation. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that
are reasonably expected {o have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

Significant elements of income or Ios:s' that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations. : -

As of December 31, 2016, there were no significant elements of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet (Dacember 31, 2016 vs. December 31, 2015)

e Cash and cash equivalent increased by P42 thousand to P26.89 million as a
result of interest received from Available-for-sale investment added to cash in
bank and collection of accounts receivabie.

Current liabilities likewise increased by P40 thousand {0 P47.68 ‘million, due to
unpaid liabilities for professional and audit fees. :

viii. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of -
operations. :

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition .
or results of operations. -

INTERIM PERIODS _
Copies of the latest unaudited Interim Financial Statements will be made available to
each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting. Such report
can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard copies of the
company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon request five (5)
calendar days before the said meeting. '

VI.  Corporate Governance -

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices in corporate governance. The
Company has adopted a Revised Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the
Company’s adherence to these principles. This Revised Manual clearly sets out the principles
of good management and defines the specific responsibilities of the Board, the Board
Committees, and management within the over-all governance framework.

The Revised Manual sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all

governance framework.

The Revised Manual conforms to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission and covers policies, among others: :

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committes); (c) independent
auditors, {(d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penalties for non-compliance.

On November 6, 2012, the Board designated a Compliance Officer, Atty. Roberto Q. Parel, who
at the same time holds the designation of Vice-President. The Compliance Officer is
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responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requireméh’ts of
good corporate governance. -

Based on the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance dated July 31, 2014 as well as the .
Company's Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2015 which are adopted herein as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, there has been no deviations from the
Company's Manual as of date. _

VIl. Financial Statements

Kindly see attached Audited Financial Statements.
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5

v HOLDINGS, IIC.

STATEMENT .O'F MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills - o
Mandaluyong, Metro Manila : A e

The management of GMA Holdings, Ine. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements including the additional compoLents attached therein, for
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards. This responsibility inctudes designing and implementiug' internal controls
relevant o the preparalion and fair presentation of the financial staterments that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

n prepuring the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ahility to continue as & coing concern, disclosing, as applicable matiers related to going concem
and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company ol {0 cease operations, or has no realistic alternative butte do so0.

The Roard of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Compa.ny’s‘_fu.lancialﬁr_eporti11g PIOCESS.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial states ding the additional

- compongnts attached therein, and submits the same to the stock

rectors, have
itipping: Standards on
fon of. the faimess .of

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appait
examined the financial staternents of the company in accordalle
Auditing, and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed”
presenggtion upen compl etion of such examination.

b

g-

FELIPE L. GOZON , GILBERTO R. DIAVIT, JR.
Chairman of the Board  President and Chief Executive Officer

e ‘ff__%mj_- B e "WF‘ o
LR S, Y ALONGT S
Chief Financial Officer

ptpsre e

Signed this 27" day of Match 2017,

- GMA HOLDINGS, INC. ‘_
Unit 5-D Tower One, One WMicKinley Place, New Bonifacio Giobal City,‘Fort Boni.faci:q,ITégju;g City 1634_P!"jii_;:?pin
D O exe: A Network Center, EDSA cor. Timog Ave, Diliman, Quezon City 1102 Philippines
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| A
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ™~ _ day of April 2017 at Makati

City, affiants exhibiting to me their com

petent evidence of identities as follows:

Name Valid 1D Issued on/lssued at
Felipe L.. Gozon Passport No. EB7372600 Feb. 13, 2013/DFA, Manila
Gilberto R. Duavit Passport No. EC1839631 Aug. 08, 2014/DFA, Manila
Felipe S. Yalong  Passport No. FB7528245 March 01, 2013/DFA, Manila
DOC NO ‘ Do BRI (gL y “ g

No._H1 Gal VADOR P, SCALANTE
Page No. _4 WOTARY PUBLIC FOR MAKAT! CITY
Book No. _ & Aupoiniment Ho. M-422
Series of 2017 Unti! December 31, 2017

st of Attarnays No, 54808
geLE Comnllanse Cartificate Mo V0021083, 6-7-18
B3R Mo, $053025° 112417, Quezon City
BTR Mo. 5912539 1-4-17; Maketl CHy
The Athesasum Bidd.,
65 L.P. Leviste 81, Makati Ciy



HOLDINGS, INC.

TREASURER’S CERTIFICATION

L FELIPE S. YALONG, of legal age, Filipino and with office address at GMA. Complex,
EDSA comer Timog, Diliman, Quezon City, after being sworn in accordance with law,

hereby certify that:

1. T am the Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., a corporation duly organized and existing’
under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philippines under SEC Certificate
of registration CS200602356 with the principal office at Unit SD Tower One, One
Mckinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City. -

2. The General Form for Tinancial Statements (“GFEFS™) diskette submitted contains the
same basic and material data in the Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation. -

I am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the foregoing and in’compliance
with the reportorial requirements of the SEC. o

L

=

oy 4 PR 21T i ciyor

Witness my hand on this

Acknavifled_géliwn't_ i

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this

Jffiahts exhibited fo me his TIN 102-874-053 (Felipe S. Yalo

Doc. No. 405
Page No. @
Book No. I
Series ¢f 2017

GMA HOLDINGS, INC. o
Unit 5-D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifag'io_,:.TéQ}gEg City 1634 Fhil

wan e ADDRESS: CAMA Network Center, EDSA cor. Timeg Ave,, Diliman, Quezon City 1103-Philippines




Control No.: £§200502356
Form Type:  GFFS frev 2006)

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City
TEL. NO.: 982:7777 log-B001/888Y - FAX NO.:
COMPANY TYPE Holding Company PSIC:
Jf these are based.on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caplion.
Table 1, Balance Sheet
. ' 2016 2015
FINANCIAL DATA - ffn Ph.’lip;:!!ne Peso)
A ASSETS{A1+A2+A3+A4+AS+AB+ATHABY A8+ A10) 48,714,825 48,218,578
A1 Current Assets {A.1.1 +A12+A 13 +A 14 +A.1.5) ) 27,885,661 27,413,055
A1.1 Cashand cash equivalenis (1,11 +A1.12+A11.3) 26,888,153 26,846,541
A.1.1.1 On hand 5,000 5,000
A.1.1.2 In domestic banks/entifies 26,883,153 26,841,541
A1,1.3 In foreign banks/entiies .
A1.2 Trade and. Other Recaivables (A.1.2.1 + A 1.2.2) 555,810 199,515
A1.2-1 Due from domestic entiies (A 1,211 +A.1.2.1.2+A 1213+ A1.2.1.4) 555,810 198,515
A.1.24.1 Due-from customers (frade} 413,660 24,430
A1.2.1.2 Dig from related parties
A1.2.1.3 Others, specify (8.1.2.1.3.1+A.1.211.3.2) 142,150 175,085
£.1.2.131 Interest Receivable 142,150 175,085

A4:2.1.32 Others
£.1.2.1.4 Allowance for doubtiul accounts (negative entry)
A1.2.2 Due from foreign entifies, specify
(A1321+A13.22+A1323+A1324)
A1.221
A1222
A1223
A.1.2.2.4 Allowance for doubtful accounts {negative entry)
1.3 Inventories (A 131 +A132+8133+A 154 +A135 +A.1.36)
A.13.1 Raw materials and supplies
£.1.3.2 Goods in process-(including unfinished goods, growing crops, unfinished
AN.3.3 Finished goods
A.1.3.4 Merchandise/Goods in fransit
A.1.3.5 Unbilled Services (in case of service providersy
A1.3:6 Others; specify (A.1,3.8.1+4:1.3.6.2)
A13.8.1
A1.38.2
.14 Financial Assels other than Cash/RecelvablesfEquity investments (A, 1.4.1 + A1.42+
Ald3+ A1 44014 5+A 140
A.1.4.1 Financial Assels af Falr Value through Profit or Loss - issued by demestic
" entilies (A4 +AT4.1.2+AT4 13 +A A4+ A41D)
Ad4.11  National Government
A14.1.2  Public Financlal fnstitutions
A1.4.1.3  Public Non-Financial Insfitutions
A1414  Private Financial Instifutfons
A1445  Private Non-Financial [hgtifutions
A.1.4.2 Held to Maturity Investments --issued by domastic sntities
A1A21 +A1422 +A1423+A 1424 +A1.425)
414421 National Government
A14.22  Public Financial nstitutions
A14.23  Public Non-Financial Insfitutions

A.1.4.24 Privafe Financial [nstitutfons
Ad:4.25  Private Non-Einancial institutions

NOTE:
This genera form is applicabla lo companies engaged in Agricutture, Fishery, Foreetry, Mining, and Quarrying, Manufacturing, Elsctricity, Gag and Water, Construcfion, Wholesale and

Retail Trade, Transporation, Sforage and Communications, Hotels and Restaurants, Real Estale. Community, Saciaf and Persanal Services, other farme of production, and ganeral business
operations: This form is also applicable to ather companies that do not have industry-specific Spacial Forms. Special forme shall be used by publichy-held companies and thase engaged in
nen-ank financlal nfermediation activities, cradit graniting, and acthities auxiliary to financial intermediation, which raquire secondary licenss from SEC.

foreign corporations that ara Yicensed to do business in the Philippines whers

Domestic corporations are those which ars Incorporated under Philippine faws or branches/subsidiaries of
those that are insorparated abroad, including branches of Philippine

the center of aconomic interest or actvity is within the Phifippines. On the ether hand, fareign corparations are
corparations operating abroad.

Financial Institutions ara corporations principally engaged in financiat intermediation, facilitating fnancial intermediation, or auxfiary finangial services, Mon-Financial institufions refer to

corparations that are primarily engagad in the production of market goods and non-financial sewvices.



GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Coniro! No.: CS200802356
Farm Type: GFFS (rev 2006

NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One McKinley Plage, New Bonifagio Global City, Taguig City
TEL,NO.: 9827777 joc 8001/8889 FAXNO.:
COMPANY TYPE Holding Company PSIC:
If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 1. Balance Sheet
] 2016 PLHAE]
FINANCIAL DATA fin Phr'.'ip;!ine Peso)
A.1.4.3 Loans and Recelvabies - lssued by domestic entities: -
(A1431+A1432 44143341434 +A 14350
A1431  National Government
A143:2  PublicFinanclal Ingtitutions
A1433  Public Non-Finangial Institutions
A14.34  Private Finanglal Institutions
A1435  Private Non-Finandial Instiutions
A1.2.4 Ayallable-for-sale financial assels - 1ssued by domestic entities: 20,825,264 20,805,523
(A1441+A1442+A 1443 +A1444+A1445)
At441  National Government
Ad4.4.2  PublicFinangial Instititions
A4443  Public:NonFinancial institutions
Al444  Private Financial Instititions 20825264 20.805,523
: Al445  Private Non-Fi iat Institutions
A 145 Financial Assets issued by forefan enfities- (A4 4.5:1+A.1.4 52+¢A.14.53+A,14.5.4) -
A1451 Fihanglal Assets at fair v rouah profit gr loss
A145.2  Helddg-matiurity investmants
A1453  Loans and Receivahlas
A14.54  Avaitable-for-sale financial assets:
£.1.4.6 Mowance for dedlinie in market valus (negalive sntry):
A15 Olher Curent Assets (state separately matetial items) (A 151 +A 152 + A1 5.3 441,598 366,939
A.1.5.1 Prepaid Tax Asset -
A.1.5.2 Input Vat 441,598 366,998
A153
A.2 Proparty, plant; and equipment (A.2.1 +A22 +A 2.3 +A24 +A2S +ARB+AZT+A28) -
A2.1 Land

A.2.2 Bullding and improvements including leaseheld improvement

A.2.3 Machinery.and equipment {on-hand and in transif)

A.2.5. Others, specify (A.2.5.1 +A252 +A253+A254 +A2.55)

A.2.4 Transportation/motor vehicles, automotive equipment, autos and trucks, and delivery equipment

A.2.5-1 Property, or equlpment used for educafion purposes

A2.5.2 Construction ih progress

A253

A2.54

A2:55

596 Aporaisalincrease, specify (A28.1 +AZ6.2+A 263 +A284)

A26:1

A26.2

A283

AZ264
A27 Accumufated Depreciation {negative enfrv}

A3 Investments accounted for using ihe equity:method (A3 +A22 +A33)
34 ity | | idiarigs/afil

A.3:2, Equity [n forei anches/subsidiaries/affiliates
A.33 Others, specliv (4.3.1.1 +A321+A331 +A33D

A331

A3.32

A3.33

A3.34

A4 tnvestment Property

A5 Biolodical Assefs

A8 Infanaible Assets (A.6.1 + A4,8.2)
el

A 8.4 Maior itern/s., specifv {A81.1+A8.1.2 + ABLI +AB] 41
AB.1.1

AB12

AB.13

AG14
ABZ Olhers, snecily (A.6.2,1 +AB22 +A823 +AB.24)

A62:1

AB2.2

AB23

AB24

ssets Classiie Held for Sale

| A7 Asseis Classified as Held for
] A8 Assels Ingiuded In Dieposal Grotps Classifled as Held for Sale




Control No.: $5200602356
Form Type: GFFS (rev 2006}

GENERAL FORM-FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC. :
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One,Qne McKinley Place; New Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City
TEL. NO..  982-7777loc B001/8889 FAX NO.: )
COMPANY TYPE: Holding Company PsiC:
if these are hased on cb_nsoﬁdated financial statements, please so indicate in the capfion.
Table 1. Balance Sheet
pligl:s | 2015

FINANCIAL DATA ) {in Phifippine Paso}

2.0 Long-term recelvables (net of cumrent portion}. {A9.1 + A.D 2+A93)
£9.1. From domesiic entiies, spacify (4911 +A9.1.2+A091.3 + A8.1.4)
AG11
Ag12
AS.1.3
AS14
A.9.2 From foreian entilies, specify (A.9.2.1 +A.8.2.2+A8.2.3 +A.8.2.4)
A9.2.1
A922
A923
A8.24
7-8.3. Allowance for doubtful accourts, net of current portion {negafive enfry}
4,10 Other Assafs(A101 +A102+ A103 +A,10.4+A 1051
A10.1 Deferred charaes - net of amortjzafion
A.10.2 Deferred:income Tax
A.10.3 Advance/Miscellaneous deoosits
4.10.4. Cthers. specily (A:104.1# A104.2 +A.10:4.3 + A 1044
A10.41 Deferred Tax Assel

Al04.2
As0.4.3
A10.4:4 i
A Allowan r write-down of deferred & agoounts: afive gntrv)
B. LIABILITIES(B.1+R2+B.3+84+B.5) 47,678,338 47,638,048
B Curcentlisblilies (8,11 +B12+B13+Bi4+B15+BIE+BAT) 47 578,338 47.638.04
B.1.1 Trade and Other Pavables to Domestic Entities. 47672123 47.635.360
B.1.1.1 Loans/Motes Pavables
B.11.2 Trade Pavables : 9,643 488
B.1.1.3 Payables o Related Parties spacify-(B.1.1 31+B1.132+B1.13.3) 47,271,600 47,271,800
R.1.1.3.1 Dug lo shareholders 47,271,600 47 271,600
B.1.132
B1.1.33
B114 Others, specfy(Bi14.1+B.1142+8114.3) 390,880 354,879
B.1.1.4.1 Defarred oufput. VAT 4431 2618
B.1.1.4:2 Accrued Expenses 346,558 352,261
B.1.14.3 _ )
B.1.2 Trade and Cther Payables to Foreign Entities {specify) {B1.2.1+6.1.2.2+B.1.2.3:8.1.24)
B.1.2.1 .
B.1.2.2
B.1.2.3
B.1.24
B 1.3 Proyisions ' - -
B4 Financial Liabiities (exciuding Trade and Other Payables and Provisions) - -
BAA1+B142+B.14.3)
B.1.4.1
B.1.4.2
B.14.3 _
B.Ld _
B.4.5 Llabllifies for Curent Tax 3526 269,
B.1.7-Others, specify (If matarial, state separately; indicateif the item is payable to public/private 2,669 2418
or financialinen-inancial institutions) i
B.1.7.1 Dividends declared and not paid.at balance sheet date 2,689 2419

B.1.7.2 Acceptances Payable
B.1.7.3 Liabilities under Trust Receipts.
B.1.7.4 Portion of Lang-term Dept Due within one year
8.1.7.5 Deferred Income _
8,178 Any other current liabiity in excess of 5% of Tota) Curent Liabillities, specify:
317484 +B17.62 +R1763+B.1L104)
R17.6.1 .
B.1.7.8.2
B.1.7:6.3

B.1.7.64




GENERAL FORMFOR:FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NAME:OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Contre! No.: 5200602356
Form Type: GFFS (rev 2006)

CURRENT ADDRESS: 50. Tower One, One McKirlay Place, New Bonifacio Glohal City, Taguig City
TEL, NG:: 982.7777 loc 800176689 : FAX NO.:
PSIC,

COMPANY TYPE :. Holding Company

if these are based on conselidated financial statements, please $0 indicate in the capfion.
Table 1. Balance Sheet

FINANCIAL DATA

)} [ N (&

{In Phillppine Pesc)

B.2 Long-termDeht - Non-current [nlerest-bearing Liabllities (B21+B.22+B23+B24+ B.2.5)

B.21 Domeastic Public Financial [nstitutions.

B.Z-2 Domastic Public Non-Financial insfitutions

B.2.3 Domestic Private Financial Insfitutions

B.2.4 Domestic Frivata Non-Financial instiutions

B.2.5 Forelgn Finangial Instiutions

B.3 Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties {Non-Currant)

B.4 Liabilities Included in the. Disposal Groups Classified as Held for Sale

B.5 Other Liabllities (B:5,1+B.5.2)

'B.5.1 .Deferred income Tax

B5.2 Others, specify (B5.2.1+B52.2 +B523 + B:5.24)

B.5.21

BS2.2

B523

B.5:2.4

C. EQUITY (C.3+CA+C.5+C.6+C7+C.8+004CA0)

1,032,487

580,530

C.1 Authorized Capital Stock (no. .of shares, par vaiue and lotal value; show details)

100,000

100,000

(G140, 124G 23
C:1.1 Common-shares |10.000 shiares par valus of P10

100,000

100,000

C.1.2 Preferred Shares

C.13 Others:

C.2 ‘Subscribed Capital Stock. (no: of shares, par value and total valug} (C.21 +$.2.2 +C.2.3)

100,000

100,000

G.2:1 Common.shares 10,000 shares par. value of P10

100,000

100,000

G 2.2 Prefaired Shares

C.2.3 Others

C.3 Pald-up Gapital Stock {C.3.1 +C.3.2)

160,000

100,000

©31 Gomman shareg |10,000 shares par valuze of P10

100,000

100,000

¢.3.2 Preferred Shares

.4 Additional Paid-in Capital / Capital in excess of par valie / Pajd-in Surplus

C.5. Minority Interest.

(194,477

.G Others, specify (C6.1 +C8.2+CE3+ £.84+C.5.5)

{174,736}

6.1 Unrealized loss on-available-for-salg:investment

(174,736}

{194,477

c82

63

C64

Ch.b

.7 Appraisal Suiplus/Revaluation increment in Property/Revaluation Surplus

675,007

.8 Retzined Eamings {C.8.1+C.8.2)

1,107,223

C.8.1 Appropriated

C.8.2 Unappropriated

1,107,223

675,007

.9 Head{Homa Qffice Account {for Foreign Branches only}

G40 Gost of Stocks Held In Treasury (negative entry)

48,218,578

D. TOTAL LIABILITIES AND-EQUITY (B +C)

48,710,825




GENERAL FORM FOR‘FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Confrol No

Form Type:

. C5200602356

"GFFS frev 2006)_

CURRENT ADDRESS:

5D.Towsr One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Taguig Gity

FAX NO.:

TEL. NO.: 982-7777 log 8001/8889
COMPANY TYPE : Holding Company

If these are based on consalidated financlal statements, please so indicafe in the caption,

Table 2. income Statement

PSIC:

FINANCIAL DATA

20186

!

2015

2014

(In Phitippine Peso)

A. REVENUE/INCOME (A1 AZ2+AS3+A4)

2,505,042

2,141,860

1,651,958

services, ete.) {from Primary Activity)

A1 Nel Salesor Revenue / Receipts from Operations (manufacturing, mining, utilities, trade,

508,348

89,103

409,143

2.2 Share inthe Profit orLoss of Associates and Joint Ventures accounted for usingthe

A3 Other Revenue (531 +A3.2+A33+A34 +A 35}

A.3.1 Rental Income from Land.and Buiidings

A.3.2 Recalpis:fiom Sale of Merchandise (trading) (from Secondary Activity)

4.3.3 Sale of Real Estate or ofher Property and Equipment

A3.4 Royailies, Franchise Fees, Capyrights (bogks, films, records, eic.)

A 3.5 Others, spacify (A3:5.1 +A352+A3563+A354 +A355~+
A356 +A3ST)

A.3.5.1 Rental Income, Equipment

A3.5:2

A353

A354

A355

A356

A3S7

A4 Other Income {non-operating) (A4 1 +A4.2 + 443 +A 44

1,996,694

2,052 857

1,242,815

AdA Interestthcome

1,996,694

2,052,857

1,242,815

A.4.2 Dividend Income

A.4.3 Gain/ (Loss) from selling of Assc's, specify
(5431 +AA32+A433+A434+A435+AL3E +A437)

A421

Ad3.2

AA43:3

Ad34

A.4.4 Gain/{Loss).on Foreign'Exchange (A.4.4.1 + 442+ A443+A444)

Ad.4.

Ad42

A443

Addd

B. COST OF GOODS S0LD(B.1+B.2+B.3)

B.1 Cost of Goods Manufactured (B.1.1+B,1.2 +B.1.3 + B 1.4 +B.1.5)

B.1.1 Direct Material Used

B.1.2 Direct Labcr

B.1.3 Other Manufacturing Cost f Overhead

B.1.4 Goods inProcess, Beginning

B.1.5 Goods inProcess, End:(negative entry)

B.? Finished Geods, Beginning

B.3 Finished Goods, Erid-(negative entry)

C. COSTOFSALES(C1+C2+C3)

.1 Purchases
.2 Marchandise-inventory, Beginning

.3 Merchandise inventory, End (negative entry)

D. COST OF SERVICES; SPECIFY (D.1+ D.2+D.3+Di4+D0:5+D.6)

D.1




GENERAL FORM-FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS; INC.

Controf No,: C8200602358
GFFS5 (rev 2006

Form Type:

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Towar One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Glcbal City, Taguig City
TEL. NO.. 982-7777 ioc 8001/6889 FAX NO.:
COMPANY TYPE: Holding Company PSIC:

If these are based on consofidated financlal statements, please so Indicate in the caption.

Table 2. Income Statement

. 2016 2015 2014
FINAN C 1AL DATA | (i Phigpine Posa) |
E. OTHERDIRECT COSTS, SPECIFY (E1+E2+E3+EA+ES+ E.6) - -
E1 ‘
E.2
E.3
E.4
E5
E.6
F. GROSSPROFIT{A-B-C-D-E) 2,505,042 2,141,950 1,654,958
G. OPERATING EXPENSES (G1+G2+8.3+Gd) 1,063,320 1,094,413 1,045,026
3.1 Selling or Marketing Expenses :
3.2 Adniinistrative Expenses 1_1063,320 1,094,413 1,045,026
(5.3 General Expenses
G.4 OtherExpenses, specify (G414 +G42+84 3+ G44+G45+GA46) -
G.4.1 Interest Expense and Bank Charges -
542
G43
Gi4.4
G45
GAB
H. FINANCE COSTS - - -
" NET INGOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX(F -G~ H} 1,441,722 1,047,547 606,932
J. INGOME TAX EXPENSE {negative entry) {409,508) (412,354} (256,746
K. INCOMEA{LQSS)AFTER TAX 1,032,218 635,193 350,186
L.

Amount of {i) Post-Tax Profit or Loss of Discontinued Operations; and (ii)
Post-Tax Gain orLoss Recognized on theMeasurement of Fair Value less
Cost to.Sell-or on the Disposal of the-Assets or Disposal Group(s)
constituting the Discontinued Operation (if any)

L1

L2

M. Profit or Loss Attributable to Minority Interest

N. Profit or Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent




GENERAL FORMFORFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Form Type:

Controf No.: C5200602356
GFFS (rev 2006)

NAME OF CORPORATION:  GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

5D Tower.One, One McKintey Place, New Bonifacio Global C_ity, Taguig City

CURRENT ADDRESS:

TEL. NO: 982-7777 loc.B001/8889 FAXNO.:
COMPANY TYPE: Holding. Company

If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 3. Cash Flow Statements

PSIC:

2014

FINANCIAL DATA

2016 |

2015 |

{fer Phifippine Peso)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

1,047,547

606,832

Net income (Loss).Before Tax and Extraotdinary ltems

1.441,722

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Amortization, spacify:

(1,996,694

{2,052 857)

{1,242,815}

interest income

Others, specify.
Intorest expense and bank charges

1,173,087

Interast received

2,029,529

2,021,179

Interast paid
Income taxes.paid

{406,249}

[410,958)

{756,745)

Write-down of Property, Plant, and Equipment

Changes:in-Assets.and Liabifties:
Decrsase (Increase} in:

{389,230)

16,550

40,650

Receivables

74,599)

(64,126)

(96,512]

Prepaid Tax

Others, specify.

Ingrease {Decrease] in:
Accounts payable and-accrued expenses

37,033

124,580

(488,364

Withholding taxes payable

Dthers, specify:  Due-to shareholders

(264,767)

A Wet Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (sum of above rows)

841672

680,915

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

{Increass) Decrease In Long-Term Recelvablas

{Increase) Decrease in Investment
Recuchionsf{AddHions) o Property, Plant, and Equipment

Others, specify;

B Not Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activides (sum of abave rows)

CAGH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:

Loang

Long-term Debt
Issuance of Sscurities

(21,000,000

Payment of available-for-sale investment

Others; specify:

Payments of.

(Loans)

{Long-term.Debt)

-{Stock Subscriptions}

Others, specify (negative entry):

{50,000}

{499,595}

Paymeint of cash dividends

[27,000,000)

. Net C:ash Piovided by (Used i) Financing Activities {sUm cf above rows)

{600,00G)

{495 595)
187,320

T 258,767)

NET INCREAGE IN-GASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A + B+ C)
Cash and Cash:Equivalents )

41,612

26,846,541

26,665,221

47,929,088

Beginning of year
Endof year

75,886,103

76,845 041

75665, 2241




GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

NAME OF CORPORATION:

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Control No.: C$200602356

Form Type.

GFFS (rev 2006)

GURRENT ADDRESS:
TEL, NO::.

882.7777 local 8001/8889

COMPANY TYPE.

Holding. Company.

5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City
FAX NO.:

I these are based on consolidated financial statoments, please so indicate

in the caption. .
Tabie 4. Statement of Changes in Equity

PSiC:

{ih Philioplhe Peso)

FINANCIAL DATA

Capital Stock

Additional Pald:
in Capital

Revaluaticn
Ingrement

Transiation
Differences

Unrealized Galn (Loss)
on AFS [nvestment - Net
of Tax

Retained Earnings

539,814

TOTAL

A. Balance,, 2014

100.000. |

§31.451

1.,171.265 |

A1 Correction of Errorfs)

A2 Changes in AcgountinaPofigy

B. Restated Balance

C. Surplus

.1 Surpius (Deficit) on Revaluation of
Propertias

C.2 Surplus {Deficit} on Revaluation.of
Investmants

.3 Currency Translation Differences

C.4 Other Surplus (Specify)

C.4.1 Other comprehiensive |oss

{725.928)

C.4.2

C43
CAd

45

635,193 |

635193

[D.. Net Income (Loss) for the Period

(500,008)

500,003}

E. Dividends {neaative.entry)

F. Appropriation for (specify)
E.1

F2

F3

F4

F5

G. |ssuance of Capita] Stock
(.1 Commaop Stock

(3.2 Preferred. Stock

G.3 Others

H. Balance, 2015

100,009

{194.477)

675,007

580,530 |

H.1 Correction of Error (s}

H.? Changes in Acgginting Policy

H. Restated Balance

J. Surpfus-
J.1 Surplus (Deficit)-on Revaluation of

Propertigs

4.2 Surpfus (Defictt) on Revaluation of
Investments

J.3 Currency Translation Differanges

19741 |

J.4 Other Surplus (sbecify)

19.741

J.4.1 Other comprehensive;jncome

442

JA43
Jad

J45

1.032.216.

1.032,216:¢

K. -Net Income (Loss) for the Period

(600,000}

(600,000

L. Dividends (negative entry)

M. Aporopriation for (specify)

.1

M.2

.3

(.4

.5
N. Issuange of Capital Stock

N.1 Comman Stagk

N.2 Prafered Stock

N,3 Others

0. Balance, 2016

100,000

{174,736)

1,407,223

1035487
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT o /

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
GMA Holdings, Ine.

5D Tower Ons, One Mckinley Place
New Globsl Bonifacio City

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qpinion

We have audited the financial statements of GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company), which comprise the
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the statements of comprehensive
income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2016, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company #s at December 31, 2016 and 20135, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016 in accordance with Philippine

Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing {PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our repott. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we
have fulfilled our other efhical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Eihics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matier

Key andit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most gignificance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters:were.addtes 2l in.the context of cur

audit of the financial statements as a whole; and in forming cur op nigh therdod) fan {5 eatt?ro dea
. - y i o A f 4 ﬁl.:;:;\r, ‘.,w_(-._a-r‘:”'"‘fﬁ.b {1 i
sepurate opinion on these matters. For the matter below, our descriptio ﬁ% ;?u‘ﬂ”ja‘—'@' it anditaddrested they

matter is provided in that context.

X

]
Gate § KPR T 2017

J08548F

L& D, OFREC

TIAIATm

i)

i

A mamber o of BEmst & Yourg Global Limftad



- l
) 2;
SGY
Building a better
working world

9.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audir of the
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of'the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our gudit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

financial statements.
Fair Valuation of Tnvestment in Unqualted Debt Security Classified as Available-for-Sale Invesiment

As at December 31, 2016, the Company bas an Available-for-Sale (AFS) investment in an unquoted debt
security amounting to B20,825,264. The valuation of this investment is a key andit matter as it is material
to the financial statements, representing 43% of the Company’s total assets as at December 3 1, 2016, and
its valuation involves Management’s exercise of judgment and the use of estimates. The Company used
the discounted cash flow model to value the investment, and the discournt rates used were based on the
spot yield eurve derived from government securities of different tenors plus an estimate of the
counterparty’s credit spread. The Company’s disclosures on the fair value of the AFS investment are
included in Notes 7, 13 and 14 to the financial statements. :

Audit Response

We traced the terms {e.g,, principal amount, interest raie, and repayment dates) used in the Company’s
valuation to the investment agreement. We reviewed the inputs used in determining the discount rates
hased on observable yields of benchmark government securities and credit rating of the counterpaty. We
tosted the mathematical accuracy of the Company’s caloulation. We also assessed the Company’s
disclosures on the fair value measurement of the AFS investment based on the requirements of PFRS 13,

Fair Value Measurement,

Other Information -

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-18 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended December 31, 2016, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon, The SEC Form 20-I8 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Forni 17-A and Annual
Report for the year ended December 31, 2016 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this

auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion therson. :

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing.so, considerwh h91";;}1%%(3;@;@@“”‘“
0 Lag Fy b 1 "

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements ﬁf'ﬁ%&ﬂ&ﬁ ﬁ;ﬁggg‘é tainedyithe
: f . N AR Lk " g e el
audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. LARGE TAXPAVERS A% TAMGE DHVISION
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
aceordance with PRRSs, and for such internal control as management defermines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

Srror.

In preparing the ficancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to ceass

operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do s0.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Respounsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements .

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of ugers taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures résponsive to those risks, and obtain audit svidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
[misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

s Obiain an understanding of internal control relevant to the andit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal coatrol.

s Bvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management. ' '

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to conti ‘
If we conclude that a material nncertainty exists, we are required Ta7
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if Lch d gary
modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the andit gvid chbe bl Bhtd e date o our
auditor’s report, However, future events o7 conditions may ¢aus F'the Cofnpany to ceasezbqﬁont%nue

ifion i
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s Evaluate the overall presentation, structurs and content of the financial smtememg,‘including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events insa

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other inatters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any siguificant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with-them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the andit of the Fnancial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit mattors. We describe these matters in our anditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would.
reasonably be expected to outsveigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purposs of forming an opinion on the basic financial statoments taken
as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 17 to
the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the
management of GMA Holdings, inc. The information has been subjected to the anditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements, In ouropinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation 10 the basic financial statements taken as a whole. :

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Ms, Mariecris N.
Barbaso.

SYCIP GORRES YELAYO & CO.

Mariecris N. Barbaso

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 97101

SEC Accreditation No. 1513-A (Group A),
October 6, 2015, valid until October §, 2018

Tax Identification No. 202-065-716 ) !,Nw‘.Gizu i
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-108-2013, LARGE TAPATED
March 4, 2015, valid until March 3, 2018 S
PTR No. 5908670, January 3, 2017, Makati City Date
March 27, 2017
joate
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Drecember 31

2016 2015
ABSETS
Churrent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6, 13 and 14) 226,888,153 B26,846,541
Accounts receivable (Notes 13 and 14) 555,810 199,515
Other current assets 441,598 266,999
Total Current Assets 27,885,561 27,413,055
Noncurrent Asset
Available-for-sale investment (Notas 7,13 and 14) 20,825,264 20,805,523
248,710,825 P48,218,578
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Linbilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
(Notes 8, 13 and 14) B403,212 2366,179
Due to shareholders (Notes 12, 13 and 14) A7,271,600 47,271,600
Income tax payable 3,526 269
Total Liabilities 47,678,338 47,638,048
Equity
Capital stock (Note 9) 100,600 100,000
Retained earnings (Note 9) 1,167,223 675,007
Unreah?ed loss on available-for-sale investment Note 7} (174,736) {194.477)
Tota) Beuity 1,032,487 580,530
PR4R.710,828 P48,218,578

See accomparying Notes to Financial Statentents.

mczf« «i

i



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Vears Ended December 31

2016 20138 2014
REVENUE
Interest income (Note‘é 6 and 7) 21,995,694 P2,052.857 PB1,242,815
Exercise fees Note 3) 308,348 89,103 409,143
2,503,042 2,141,960 1,651,958
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 10) 1_,063,320 1,094,413 1,043,026
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 1,441,722 1,047,547 606,932
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 11) 409,506 412,354 256,746
NET INCOME 1,632,216 635,193 350,186
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Item to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent per:ods -
Unrealized gain (loss) on avallabie-for«salc .
investment (Note 7) 18,741 {725,928) 531,451
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCONME (LOSS) P1,681,957 C(B90,735) £§81,637

Basic/Diluted Tarnings Per Share (Note 15)

B103.22 B63.52 PB35.02

See aveompanying Notes to Financial Statemenis.




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ungeatized
Gain (Loss) on
Ratained Available-for-Sale

Capital Earnings Investment
Stock (Note 8} (Note 9) {(Note 7} Total
Ralances as at January 1, 2016 £106,000 PG675,007 (B194,47T) P5R0,530
Nel incoms - 1,032,216 - 1,032,216
Other comprehensive inconie - - 19,741 19,741
Total comurehensive income - 1,032,216 19,741 . 1,081,957
Cash dividends {Note 9) ) - (600,000] t = (600,004
Balances as at December 31, 2016 100,000 ¥1,197.223 (R174,736) B 032,487
Balances as at Janvary 1, 2015 B1O0,000 £539.814 PI31451 21,171,265
Net income - 615,193 ' - 635,193
Other comprehensive loss - - {725,928) (725,928)
“otal comprehensive income (loss) - 635,193 (725,928) S (90,738
Cash dividends (Note 9) - (500,600) - (500,000)
Brlamees as at December 31, 2015 B100,000 2675,007 (2194,477) PSR0,530
Ralances as at January 1, 2014 £100,000 £189,628 P P289,628
Net income - 350,186 - 350,186
Other comprehensive inceme - - 531,451 531,451
Total comprehensive income - 350,186 531.451 881,637
Baiances as ar Deepmber 31, 2014 £100,000 1530814 B531,45] - PL171,265

See accompanying Notes to Financial Staterments.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Eaded December 31

2016 2013 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES ‘ ' :
Income before income tax R1,441,722 1,047,547 B606,932
Adjustment for interest income
{Notes 6 and 7) (1,996,694) (2,052,857) {1,242 815)
Operating loss before working capital changes (554,972) (1,005,310) (635,883)
Deorease (increase) in: :
Accounts receivable (389,250) 15,550 40,650
Other current assets {74,599} (64,126) (96,512)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
other current liabilities 37,033 124,580 {488,364)
Cash flows used in operations (981,768) (929,306). (1,180,109)
Interest received 2,029,629 2,021,179 1,172,087
Income taxes paid (406,249} (410,958} (256,745)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities 641,612 680,915 (264,767
CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING
ACTIVITY '
Purchase of available-for-sale investment (Note 7) - o {(21,000,000)
CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING
ACTIVITY
Payment of cash dividends (Note 9) (600,000} {499,593) -
NET INCRFEASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 41,612 181,320 (21,264,767)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 76,846,541 26,665,221 47,929,988
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .
$26,888,153 £26,846,541 26,665,221

AT END OF YEAR (Note 6)

See accompanying Notes fo Finanotal Statements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC. |
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

1. Corporate Information

GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or
otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or
otherwise dispose real and personal property of every kind and description. The registered office
address of the Company is 51 Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Global Bonifacio City, Fort
Bonifacio, Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on February 15, 2006. ‘

The accounting and administrative functions of the Company are undertaken by GMA Network,
Inc. (GMA), a company under common control, :

1n 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs), which were listed and traded in
‘The Philippine Stock Exchange, Ine. (PSE) (see Note 5).

The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the
issuance of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and
holding of the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued, This includes
maintaining the Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as a Philippine person
for as long as the Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA’s shares by non-Philippine person.

Ne reportable segment information is presented as the Compeny’s limited operations are
adequately presented in the statcments of comprehensive income,

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for
issuance in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 27, 2017,

2. Basis of Preparation, Statement of Complinace and Changes in Accounting Poficics and
Disclosures

Basis of Preparation .
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historjcal cost basis, except for

available-for-sale {AFS) investment, which is measured at fair valye. The financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso, which is the Compasy’s functional and presentation currency. All
values are rounded to the nearest peso.

Statement of Compliance .
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Changes in Accounting Folisies and Disclosures 7
The aceounting policies adopied are consisient with thase gﬁf_tjggz_gggyigys,ﬁnazmial,year- -exgept-z

that the Company has adopted the following new accourtingpraman
January 1, 2016, Adoption of these pronouncemonts did not ﬁﬁv#@hé
Company’s financial position or performance unless uth i

«  Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28, Imsriant B A
Consalidation Exception 1




.-

Amendments to PERS 11, dccounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to PAS 1, Disclosure nitiative ‘ :

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38, Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation

and Anworiization ,

»  Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 41, Agriculture! Bearer Plants

= Amendments to PAS 27, Equity Method in Separate Fi inancial Statements

«  Annual Improvements-to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cyele

s Amendment to PERS 5, Changes in Methods of Disposal

»  Amendment to PFRS 7, Servicing Contracis

e Amendment to PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments (o PFRS 7 to Condensed Tterim
Financiol Statements . ‘

«  Amectidment to PAS 19, Discount Rate; Regional Market Issue

»  Amendment to PAS 34, Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Intevim Financial

Report’ ‘

Future Changes in Accounting Policies
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the

Company does ot expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements to have a significant
impact on its financial statements. The Company intends to adopt the following pronouncermnents

when these become effective..

Effzctive beginning on or afier January 1, 2017

s Amendment to PFRS 12, Clarification of the Scope af the Standard (Part of Anral
Improvements.to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle) '

«  Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial staterments 1o evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains or losses). On initial application of the amendrents, entities are not required
to provide comparative information for preceding periods, Early application: of the
amendments is permitted, -

Application of amendments will result in additiona! disclosures in the 2017 financial
statements of the Company.

s Amendments to PAS 12, fncome Taxes, Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should.determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit
may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount,

Entities are required to apply the amendmerts retrospectively. However, on initial application
of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may
be recognized in opening retained sarnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained garnings and other

i
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compenents of equity. Bntities applying this relief 'misst diselose that fact. Early application
of the amendments is permitted.

Effective beginning on 0¥ after January 1, 2018

Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Paywent Transactions

Amendments to PFRS 4, nsurance Contracts, Applying PFRS 9 Fi inameial Instruments, with
PFRS 4 ‘ '

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
with customers, Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expeots to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services o a customer. The principles in PFRS 13 provids a more structured approach to

measuring and recognizing revenue.

The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under PFRS, Either a ful! or modified retrospective application is
required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, :

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

PERS 9, Fingneial nstruments

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 39, F nancial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The
standard infroduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment and
hedge accounting. PFRS 9 s effective for annual periods beginning on or after

January 1, 2018, with early application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but
providing comparative informatior: is not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the
requirements are genérally applied prospectively, with some limited sxceptions.

The adoption of PFRS 8 will have an sffect on the classification and measurement of the
Company’s financial assets and impairment methodology Tor financial assets, but will have no

impact on the classification and measurement of the Company’s financial liebilities. The
Company is currently assessing the inipact of-edopting this standard.

Amendments to PAS 28, Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of
Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property, Tranisfers aof Investment Property

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration ‘

i
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Effective beginning on o after January 1, 2019
»  PFRS 16, Leases
Deferved effectivity

s Amendments to PFRS 10 and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent CJ assification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on

eurrent/moncurrent classification.

An asset as current when it is:

«  Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
= Txpected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
«  (ash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability s current when:

= It is expected to be settled in normal operating oyole;

s It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

s Itis due to be settled within twelve monihs after the reporting period; or

v Thers is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at feast twelve
months after the reporting period. ‘

The Company classifies al! other assets and lighilities as noncurrent, .

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair vaiue
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the

liability takes place either;

» in the principal market for the asset or liability; or
s in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best

economic interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes info account a market participant’s ability
to generate econumic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it o
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

RTERRRIEA
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The Company uses valnation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

Assets and liabilities Tor which fair value is messured or disclosed in the Company’s finsacial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement a5 & whole:

s Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
 liabilities; - :
s Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement s directly or indirestly observable; and _
¢ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fail
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and Habilities that ave recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair
value measusements. At each reporting date, the management analyzes the movements inthe
values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or reassessed as per the
Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs
applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuaticn gomputation to
contracts-and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level

of the fair valug hierarchy.

Details as to how the fair value of assets and liabilities are measured arc provided in Note 14,

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with criginal maturities of three
months or less from dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instrunienis

A financial insirument is any cotract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity and a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity,

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measuremant

Pinancial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (JITM) investments, available for gale
(AFS) financial assets, or as derivatives designated s hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the ¢ase of
financial assets not recorded at FVPL, transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition of

the finanicial asset.
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Purchaseé or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subseguent Measurement ‘
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
»  TFinancial assets at FVPL

v Loans and receivables

= HTM investments

s ATS financial assets

The Compeny has no financial assets at FVPL and HTM investments,

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not guoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost uging the effective intezest rate (EIR)
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that ate an infegral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization and the losses arising from impairment are recognized in statement of comprehensive

ingome.

This category includes cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

AFS Investments. The Company’s ATS financial asset pertains to debt securities. Debt securities
in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite petiod of time and that may

be sold in response o needs for liquidity or in response ta changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial asssts are subsequently measured at fair value with
unrealized gains or losses recognized in OCI and credited to the AFS reserve yntil the investment
is derecognized, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in other operating
income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss is reclassified
from the AFS reserve to the statement of profit or loss in finance costs. Interest earned whilst
holding AFS financial assets is reported ag interest income using the EIR method.

Derecognition ‘
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of & group of similar

financial nssets) is primarily derecognized (i.e., removed from the statement of financial position)
when: ‘

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have gxpired; or

x  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash {lows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company hes transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred por retained
substantially alf the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or hag entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, if has retained the risks and
rewards of owsership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize
the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing invelvement, In that case, the Company also
recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on & basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
T
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measurad.
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maxinmum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay. :

Impairment of Financial Assets ‘

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairmient may include indications that the debtors or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other {inancial ‘
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measturable decrease in the estimated

future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults,

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. For financial assets carried al amortized cost, the
Company first assesses whether itmpairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are aot individually significant. If
the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit tisk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment,
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment,

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (exeluding future expected
credit losses that have not yet been ineurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows

is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continies to be acerued
on the reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment Joss. Loans, together with the associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
renlized or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment foss increases or decreases because of an svent cocurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited fo other
income in the statement of comprehensive income.

AFS Investments. For AFS ‘financial assets, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidencs that an investment of a group of investments s impaired.

Tn the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recotrded for
impairment {s the cumulative toss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or

loss,
Fufure interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset,

using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest is recorded as part of interest income. If, i a subsequent year, the
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fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
oceurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or Ioss, the impairinent loss is
reversed through profit or foss. ;

‘Day 1 Difference’. Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair
value based on other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value {a ‘Day 1 difference’) in
profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of assef. In cases where
unobservable data is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value is
recognized in profit or loss only when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized, For each transaction, the Company determines the appropriate: method of
recognizing the ‘Day 1 difference’ amount. '

Financial Liabilities

Initial Recagnition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payzbies, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate,

All fipancial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

This categoty includss accounts pavable and other current liabilities (excluding deferred output
VAT) and due to shareholders.

Subsequent Measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subscquently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as wel} as through the EIR amortization

process,

Amortized cost is calevlated by taking into.account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as interest

expense in the stafement of comprehensive income.

Derecogrition _
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or

cancelled or expires, When an cxisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of & new liability. The differcnce in the respective carrying amounts is

recognized in the statement of profit or Joss.

Offsetting of Financlal fnstruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement

of financial posiiion if there is a currently enforceable Jegal right fo offset the recognized amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the Habilities

f
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simuitaneously. The Company assesses that it has a cusrently enforceabls right of offset if the
right is not contingent on a future event, and is legalty enforceable in the normal course of
business, event of default, and event of insolvency or bankruptey of the Company and all of the

counterparties.

Other Current Assets
Other cutrent assets include input VAT and prepaid taxes which represent prior year’s excess tax.
credits from taxes withheld and are deductible from the Company’s income tax payable.

Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued, Incremental costs
incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in squity as a deduetion from

proceeds, net of fax.

Retained Eovnings. Retained earnings represent the Company’s aconmulated earnings, net of
dividends declared.

Dividends. The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distribution to its equity holders
when the distribution is aunthorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Company. As per the corporate faws in the Philippines, a distribution is authorized when it is
approved by the BOD. A corresponding amount is recognized directly in the equity. Dividends
for the year that are approved after the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the

teporting date.

Revenue
Revenue 18 recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into.
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty, The Company
assesses its revenue arfangements against specific criteria in order to determire if'it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all ifs revenue

arrangements.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met hefore revenue is recognized:

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the sffective
yield on the asset..

Exercise Fees. Revenue is recognized upon conversion of PDRs to comumon shares.

Expenses
Expenses presented as “Operating expenses” account in the statement of comprehensive income

are recognized as incurred.

Current Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritics. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at

reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not
in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect

NI
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to sityations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate. '

Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all
temporary differences at reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

" Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differcaces, canryforward
benefits of excess minimum corporate income tax {MCIT) over regular corporate income tax
(RCIT) and net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxabie
income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and.the cgrryforward
benefits of excess MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except: ‘ i} a

. . . . ¥
»  When the deferred income tax assct relating to the deductible temporary differenct arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxeble profit or

loss; and

» In respect of deductible temporary differcnces associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresezable
future and taxable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilized.

The carrying smount of deferred income fax assets s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit wilt allow the deferred income tax assels to be recovered.

Deferred income tax linbilities are recognized for all tazable temporary differences, except:

v When the deferred income tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

s In respect of taxable temporary differences sssotiated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse

in the foreseenble future,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates applicable to the year when
tho asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tex rates and tax laws that have been {o be

enacted of substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred incornie tax assets and Habilities are offset if a lepally enforceable right exists to offset
current tax assets against current tax liebilities and the deferred income taxes refate to the same

taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Income tax relating to OCI is recognized in OCI section of the statements of comprehensive
income.

|
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VAT, Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT. The net amount of
VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of “Other current
assets” or “Accounts payable and other current liabilities” accounts in the statement of financial

position.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Company has no dilutive potential
common shares outstanding, therefors, basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS.

Provisions :
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where,

as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of assets embodying economic benefite will
be required to settle the obligation and a relable estimate cat be made of the amount of the
obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the Hability. Where
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest
expense. Where the Company expects a provision {0 be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statoments. These are disclosed in the

notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
cconomic beneflts is remate. Contingent assets are not recognized in the {inancial statements but
are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefiis is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s sosition at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material,

Summary of Significant Accounfing Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported ammounts of assets, liabilities, income and

expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Uncertainty about these agsumptions
and sstimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of

_assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are belioved to be determinable under the

ciicumstances,

The key estimates and assumptions conceming the future and othsr key sources of estimation
uncettainty at reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below, The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on. parametess available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the contrel of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when these oecur.
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Determining Fair Value of AFS Investment. The Company has no intention of selling its AFS
investment in the near term. Jt is being held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity

requirements or changes in market sondition.

The Company carrios AFS investrent at fair value. Since AFS investment cannot be derived
from aotive markets, the fair value is detérmined using appropriate valnation technique, which is
discounted cash flow methodology. The inputs to the model are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair

value.
The fair value of AFS investment is discussed in Note 14,

Impaivment of AFS Investment. The Company follows the guidance of PAS 39 to determine whien
an AFS investment is impaired. Judgment by management is required in the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows when determining if allowance is required. Sueh
estimates are based on assumptions about a pumber of factors and actual results may differ,
Allowance may be based on any deterioration in the internal rating of the investment since it was
acquired. These internal ratings take into consideration factors such as any deterioration in risk,
industry, and the financial health and neat-term business outlook of the issuer, as well as identified

structural weaknesses or deterioration in cash flows,

There was no provision for impairment loss in 2016 and 2015. The carrying vaiue of AFS
investment amounted to 820,83 million and $20.81 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2013,

respectively (sse Note 7).

Estimating Realizability of Deferved Income Tux Assets. The Company’s assessment on the
recognition: of deferre income tax assets on nondeductible temporary differeaces and ‘
carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT is based upon the likely timing and level of
forecasted taxable income in the subsequent periods. This forecast is based on the Company’s

future expectations on revenue and expenses.

The Company did not recognize deferred income X assets amounting to B0.73 million and
£0.96 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively as management believes that
sufficient taxable profit will not be available against which the deductib:le temporary differences

can be utilized (see Note 11).

Plilippine Deposit Receipts

On Tuly 30, 2007 and August 21, 2007, the Company issued 822,115,000 and 123,317,000 PDRs
relating to GMA shares, respectively. Total number of issued PDRs is 945,432,000 fora

consideration of B8.50 per share or B8,036,172,000.

Each PR grants the holders, upon payment of the exercise price and subject to certain other
conditions, the delivery of one GMA share of the sale of and delivery of the proceeds of such sale
of one GMA share. The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered
by the PDRs. The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA shares.

The GMA shares are still subject to ownership restrictions on shares of corpotations engaged in
mass media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares to persons other than Philippine nationals.
The PDRs were listed in the PSE on Tuly 30, 2007, and the same may be exercised at any time
from said date. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares received

B
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by the Company shall be applied toward the operating expenses of the Company for the current
and preceding years, A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall
be get aside to moeet opeiating or other expenses for the suceeeding years. Any amount in excess
of the aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shall be
distributed to PDR holders pro-rata on the first business day after such cash dividends are received

by the Company.

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an exercise price of B0.05 (VAT inclusi%) per share shall be paid by
the PDIR holders, The exercise price is shown as “Exercise fees” account in the statement of
coraprehensive income, Bxercise fees amounted to 20,51 million, 20.09 million and 20.41 million

in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively,

Immed:ately prior to the closing of the PDR offering and additional issnances described above,
GMA, to which the Company is affiliated, wansferred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Company
‘11 pelation to which the PDRs were issued. For as long as the PDRs are not exercised, the shares
underlying the PDRs will continue to be registered in the name of, and owned by the Company,

“and all rights pertaining to these shares, including veting rights, shall be exercised by the

Company, The obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA shares on exercise of the right
contained in the PDRs are secured by the Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on
behalf of each holder of a PDR over the GMA sharss. '

At any time after the PDR offering, a shareholder may, at his option and from time to time, deliver
shares {o the Company in exchange for an equal pumber of PDRs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded value of GMA shares at the time of transaction with the corresponding PDR

option price.

As discussed above, the Company retains the rights to receive the cash flows from its investment
in GMA and assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (a “pass-through” arrangement). The “pass-through” test is met becanse the
Company (a) hes no obligation to the PDR tholders unless it collects equivalent amounts from its
investment in GMA, (b) is contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investinent in
GMA other than as security to the PDR holders for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and

(c) has an obligation to remit any cash {lows from the investment in GMA to the PDR holders

without material delay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is deemed to have transferred éubsta.ntially the risks
and rewards of its investment in GMA.” Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the liabilities
related 1o the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company.

The following are the details and movements of the PDRs and the nnderlying GMA shares for the
years ended December 31:

PDRs Number of Shares
2016 2015 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of yeat: $7,193,967,350 £7,210,932,500 846,345,100 548,345,000
Exercise of PDRs {96,789,560) (16,963,150) ¢{11,387,000) (1,995,900)

Balancs at end of year £7,097,177,850 B7,193,967,350 834,562,100 846,349,10C

On March 30, 2015, the Companjf approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of B0.25 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to 211,75 millicn to all shareholders of record
as at April 24, 2015, These were renitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015,

T



S

-14 -

On April 8, 2016, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to POR holders of £0.40 per
share totaling to P338.54 million, in relation to dividends declared by GMA to all shascholders of
record as at April 25, 2016, These were semitted to the PDR holders on May 17, 2016.

The BOD approved a tesolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash dividends received from
GMA without deducting the Company’s 2016 and 2015 projected operating expenses on

March 27, 2016 and Aprit 17, 2015, respectively. Such expenses shall be covered by the interest
income from the Company’s cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment. :

As discussed in Note 16, on March 27, 2017, the BOD approved a cash distribution torPDR‘
holders in relation to dividends declared by GMA.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

' 2016 2015
C'ash on hand and in banks 81,540,880 R722,018
Short-term deposits 25,347,273 - 26,124,523

£26,888,153 P26,846,541

Cash in banks earn intevest at the respective bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for
varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company, end earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. '

Tnterest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to R0.87 million,
£0.92 million and 21,12 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. :

Available-for-Sale Investment

Tn 2014, the Company purchased at par & ten-year UBP Tier Note with a face vakie of
B21.00 million bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.38%. The maturity date of this note is on

February 20, 2023.

Interest income earncd from the UBP Tier Note amourted to £1.12 million, #1.13 million and
20,12 million in 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The movement in AFS investment is as follows:

o 2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year’ 20,805,523 $21,759,216
Change in fair value 14,741 {953,603}

Balance at end of vear B20,825,264 B20,805,523

Movement of net vnrealized loss on AFS investment is as follows:

2016 2015
Balance at beginning of year @194,477) 531,451
Gaia (loss) due to changes in fair value of AFS
investment 18,741 {725,928)

Balance at end of vear (#174,738) (B194.477)
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8. Accounis Payable and Qther Current Liabilities

~Accounts payable and accrued
the next financial year. Accrue

2816 20135
Accounts payable 9,643 8,881
Accrued expenses: _
Professional and trust fees - 342,857 350,000
Others , 3,702 © 2,261
Deferred output VAT 44,321 2,618
Dividends payable | 2,689 2,419
' R403,212 P366,179

expenses are notinterest-bearing and are normatly settled within
d expenses represent audit fees, retainer fees and miscellancous

expenses.
Equity
a. Capital Stock
The Company has 10,000 authorized, issued and outstanding common shares with B10.00 par
value per share. o
The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securities with
the SEC as tequired by Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011):
Authorized Number
Number of Issued Issue/
Date of SEC Approval of Shares Shares Offer Price
July 39, 2007 945,432,000 944,432,000 88,50
b. Retained Bamings

On March 30, 2015, the BOD approved the Com
dividends amounting to P0.50 mithion {0 all stock

pany’s declaration and distribution of cash
holders of record as at December 31, 2014.

On April 8, 2016, the Company’s BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution
of cash dividends amounting to R0.60 million to all shareholders of record as at April 25, 2016

and were paid on May 17, 2016.

On March 27, 2017, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to #1.00 million to el stockholders of record as at April 20, 2017

(see Note 16).

AR
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10, Qperating Expenses

2016 2015 2014
Listing foes P614,064 T OBST6,046 B690,293
Professional fees 382,887 475,291 280,085
Taxes and licensgs 31,509 20,382 42,788
Others 34,890 22,694 31,858
1,003,320 ?1,094,413 R1,045,026
11, Income Tuxes
Current Income Tax 7 _

The components of the Company’s provision for current income tax are as follows:
2015 2013 2014
Final tax interest 1399,339 B410,572 $248,563
MCIT 10,167 1,782 3,183
P409,506 B412,354 256,746

The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at-statutory incoms tax rate and the
provision for income tax as shown in the statements of comprebensive income is suminarized as

foliows:
2016 2015 2014
Income tax computed af statutory
income tax rato P432,517 B314,264 P182,080
Income tax effect of:
Interest income subjected to ,
final tax (199,869) (205,285) (124,282)
Movement in unrecognized :
deferred income tax assets (226,597) 36,306 (181,061)
Expired NOLCO and MCIT 403,285 267,069 380,009
P409,506 P412,354 £256,746
Deferred Tax Assets
The components of unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows:
2016 2015
NOLCO - PG58,849 BRA5 613
Unrealized loss on AFS investment 52,421 58,343
MCIT 20,132 9,965
P£963,921

P731,402

R



-17 -

As at December 31, 2016, NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future

taxable income and RCIT due, respectively, are as follows:

Date Paid/Incurred Carryforward Benefit Up To NOLCO MCIT
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2017 : P635,383 B8,183
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2018 1,005,31¢ 1,782
. Decermber 31, 2016 December 31, 2019 554,972 10,167
27,196,165 $20,132
The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:
2016 2013
NOLCO:
Balance st beginning of year 22,985,377 R2,655,461
Additions ' 554,974 1,005,310
Expired NOLCO {1,344,184) (875,394)
Balance at end of year ' 2,196,165 B2,085377
MCIT:
Balance at beginning of ysar BY,965 P12,634
Additions ‘ ‘ 10,167 1,782
Expired MCIT ‘ . - (4,451)
Ralance at end of year B20,132 9,965

In 2015, deferred income tax asset amounting to 20.23 million was partiall

y recognized to offset.

against deferred income iax liability of ihe same amount arisig from unrealized gain on AFS

iivestment.

12. Related Party Disclogures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, direetly and indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common

control.

Terms and Conditions of Trangactions with Related Parties

Transactions with related parties have been entered into af terms no less favorable than could have
been obtained if the transactions were entered into with unrelated parties. The Company’s
financial statements include the following amounts resulting from the transactions with related

parties as at December 31

Amount/Vohime Outstanding
Calegory ' _ Year  of Transactions Pavable Torms

Canditions

Shareholders
Portion of proceeds retained 3016 -
from isspance of PDRs

P47,271,6060 On doma

Belo, Gozon, Elma Law Firm 2015 67,857 167857 Ondema

nd, noninterest- Unsecured

2015 - 47,271,600 bearing

nd, manirterest- Unsecured

2015 109,091 200,000 bearing

The outstanding balance of
pertains to #0.03 per PDR portion of the original proceeds retained by the

“Tyne to shareholders” account in the statements of financial position.

Company, as the PDR

IO
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issuer, in consideration for the rights granted under the PDRs. This amount will be used for the,
liquidation of expenses related to the [ssuance of the PDRs. Any excess is to be remitted to the

selling shareholders,

The Company’s key management nersonnel are employed by GMA and no part of their salaries
was allocated to the Company., :

13.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents and AFS
investment. The main purpose of these financial instraments is to finance the Compeny’s
operations. The Company has other financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable,
accounts payable and other current lizbilities (excluding deferred output VAT) and due to
shareholders, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial stafements are as follows:

= Liguidity risk. Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter
difficulties in raising funds to meet commitments from financial instruments,
Interest rate risk. Fixed rate financial instrument is subject 1o fair value interest rate risk.

s Credit visk. Credit risk arises from default of the counterparty.

The BOD roviews and approves the Company’s objectives and policies.

Liquidity Risk , |
The Company’s abjective in liquidity management is to ensure that the Company has sufficient

liquidity to meet obligations under normal and adverse circumstances and is able to take
advantage of investment opportunitics as they arise.

The Company manages its Hguidity risk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations
and interest income from AFS investment to meet its short-term liquidity needs, The Company
likewise regularly evaluates other financing instruments and arrangements to broaden the

Company’s range of financing sources,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used for
liquidity risk management purposes and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments as at December 31:

1016
More than
On Demand 3 io 12 Months 1 year Tutal
Financial Assets .
Cash and cash cquivalerts o E26,888,153 P P- 226,888,183
Acceutits receivable ’ 555,810 - - 545,810
AFS investment - 879,948 19,945,296 20,825,264
' B17.443.263 879,068 £19,945,206 $48,269,227
Finaneizl Liabilitics
Accounts payahle and other current
liabikities* P35B,EY1 : P B - R3S8,8%1
Due to sharcholders 5,523,495 41,748,108 - 47,271,600
' 5,852,386 141,748,108 B F47,630,401

FEveindmg defarrad output VAT amounting to P44,321 as at Drecember 31, 2616,
4 g

R TEENE
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2013
More than :

On Demand: 3 tp 12 Months | 1 vear Total
Finanein] Assets
Cash and cagh equivalents P16,846,541 B P P26,846,541
Accounts receivable 199,315 - - 196,513
AFS investment o 380,679 19,924,844 20,805,523

027,046,056 BEE0,679 210,924,844 »47.851,579 -
Financtal Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current : ]

lighilities* 363,501 B B £363,561
Due to sharcholders 4,954,145 42,317,455 - 47,271,600
$5,317,706 42,717,455 B $47,635,161

FEeciuding deferved awiput VAT amounting fo P2.LIE as at Decenber 31, 2013,

Interest Rate Risk
The Corpany’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the

Company’s AFS investment which are subject to fair value interest rate risk.

Fair Vaiue Interest Rate Risk, Fixed rate financial instruments are subject to this risk. The
Company’s AFS investment earns interest at a fixed rate of 5.38% throughout the period of
investment, The following table below demonstrates the sensitivity of fair value changes due to
possible change in interest rates with all other variables heid constant (through the impact on other

comprehensive income).

Increase
{Decrease) in Effect on Equity
Basis Points 2016 2015
AFS investment 50 (@633,500) (R931,494)
(50) 709,352 577,078

Credit Risk :

Credit risk arfsing from cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment, the Company’s exposure
10 credit risk arises from default'of the counterparty, with 8 maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of the instruments, It is the Company’s policy to enter into transactions with a
diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit risk. The
Company has an internal mechanism to moniter the granting of eredit and wanagement of credit
exposures. The Company will make provisions, when necessary, for potential Josses on credits

extended. The Company does not require any collateral for its financial assets.

As at December 31, 2016 and 20135, the financial assets are generally viewed by management as
good and collestible considering the credit history of the counterparties, Wo financial assets were
identified by the Company as past due or jmpaired financial assets as at December 31, 2016 and

2015.

Credit Quality of Finangial Assefs '
The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using high grade and gtandard

grade as internal eredit ratings.

High Grade. This pertains to a connterparty who is not expected by the Company to default in
setling its obligations, thus, cradit risk exposure is minimal. This normally includes large prime

financial institutions and related parties.

A WA
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Standard Grade. Other financial assets not classified as high grade are included in this category.

The Company classified its cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on band) and AFS
investment as high grade financial assets as at Decemiber 31, 2016 and 2015,

Capital Manegement
The primary objective of the Company’s capitel management is to ensure that it maintaing a strong

credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder
value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changesin
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, payoff existing debts, return-capital to shareholders or issue

new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, polisies or processes for the three years ended
December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,

The Company’s capital fnahagement is undertaken by GMA, The Company’s capital includes the
total equity, before other comprehiensive income, which amounted to 21.21 million and
P0.78 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

14,

Financial Assets and Linhilities

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each financial
instrument for which it is practicable to estitmate such value;

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accounts Receivable, Aceounis Payable and Other Current Ligbilities

{excluding Deferred Qutput VAT) and Dye to Shareholders
The carrying amounts of these financial instruments approximats their fair values due to the short-

term maturities of these financial instruments,

AFS Investment ‘ -

The estimated fair value of AFS debt investment is based on the discounted values of future cash
flows. The discount rates used were based on the apot yield curve derived from government
securities of different tenors plus an estimate of the counterparty’s credit spread, which is based on
the counterparty’s credit rating. The fair value is under level 2 of the fair valne hierarchy.

The following table below demonstrates the sensitivity of eredit spread (through the impact on
ofher comprehensive income).

Increase
{(Decrease) in Effect on Equity
Rasig Points 2016 205
AFS investment _ 50 (#536,113) (R592,292)

(50) 584,042 614,393

LT
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15,

Basle/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share Computation

Basic/dituted EPS is computed as follows:

2016 2015 2014
Net income aitributable to equity holders (&) PL,032,216 £635,193 P350,186
Commeon shares issued at beginning and end of year (b) 10,000 10,000 10,000
Basic/diluted earnings per share (a/l) £103.22 . P63.52 £35,02

The Company has no dilutive potential common shargs outstanding thergfore basic EPS is same a5
diloted EPS. ' : ’

16.

Events after the Reporting Date

On March 27, 2017, the Company’s BOD appraved a cash distribution to PDR holders
of B0.73 per share fotaling B607.44 rillion, in relation to dividends declared by GMA to all

shareholdérs of record as at April 20, 2017 and will be paid on May 16, 2017,

On the same date, the BOD approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash
dividends received from GMA without deducting its operating expenses and approved the use of
{he interest income from its cash and cash equivalents and AFS investment to cover for these

EXPenses.

Further, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash dividends
amounting to ®1.00 million to all slockkolders of record as at April 10, 2017,

17.

Supplementary Information Required by Revenue Regulations (KR) 15-2010
The Company reported and/or paid the following i“ype's of taxes in 2016

YAT

The Company’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-registerad
individuals or corporations are subject to input VAT. The VAT rate is 12%.

a. Net sales/receipts and output VAT declared in the Company’s VAT returns

The Company’s sales that are subject to ontput V AT are reported under “Exercise fee”
account in the statement of comprehensive jncome.

The Company’s taxable sales from services amounted to Bl 60,322 with'corraspanding putput
VAT of £19,299.

b. Input VAT
Balance at January B366,999
Current vear’s domestic purchases for services 93,898
Total inpat VAT ‘ 460,897
Applied against output VAT (19,299)
Bailance at December 31 P441,598

IR
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Other Taxes and Licenses

Sl 2L b O e SR

Al! other Iocal and national faxes paid for the year ended December 31, 2016 consist of!

Local taxes and license fees 231,009
Registration fees 500
- 231,509

Withholding Taxes

Withholding taxes paid and/or withbeld for the year ended December 31, 2016 consist of:

Final withholding tax £42,980,314
Expanded witholding tax 15,281
P42,995,595

Tax Assessments and Cagses .
As at December 31, 2016, the Company has no ongoing tax assessmeits and cases with the

Burean of Internal Revenue (BIR). Likewise, the Company has no other pending tax cases outside

the administration of the BIR as at December 31, 2016,

1l
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
GMA Holdings, Inc,

5D Tower One, One Mckinley Place

New Global Bonifacio City

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of GMA
Holdings, Inc. as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2016 included in this Form 17-A, and have issued our report thereon dated March 27,
2017, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index to Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules
are the responsibility of the Company’s management, These schedules are presented for purposes of
complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011), and are not part of the basic
finuncial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information
required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as.a whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Mariecris N. Barbaso
Partner :
CPA Certificate No. 97101
SEC Acereditation No. 1513-A (Group A),
October 6, 2015, valid until October 5, 2018
Tax Identification No, 202-065-716
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-108-2015,
March 4, 2015, valid nntil March 3, 2018
PTR No. 5908670, January 3, 2017, Makati City

March 27, 2017
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY

SCHEDULES AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 .

I Supplemental Schedules Required by Annex 68-E

A. TFinancial Assets

B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties
and Principal Siockholders (Other Than Related Parties)

C. Amounts of Receivables and Payable from/to Related Parties which are
Eliminated during Conselidation Process of Financial Statements

D. Intangible Assets - Other Assets
E. Long-term Debt

F. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-term Loans from Related Parties)
G. Guarantess of Securities of Other Issuers
H. Capital Stock

I Schedule of All the Effective Standards and Interpretations

1. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration

IV, Schedule of Pinancial Ratios

Attacheci

Mot applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Attached
Attached
Attached

Attached
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GMA HOLIINGS, INC.

I SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY AMNNEX 68-E
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016

Schednle A. Financial Assetfs

Amount shown i
the statements of Income reoeived

Name of issuing entity and assoclation of each issue financial position and acorued
Cash and cash equivalents ‘

Cash on hand 3,000 © P

Cagh in banks!

Union Bank of the Philippines 1,450,398 4,175

Deutsche Bank - 704

Banco De Oro 85,482 196

1,540,380 5,675

Cash equivalents - Unicapital, Inc. 25,347,273 ‘ 862,269

P26,838,153 BEG7,944

Avaiiable-for-sale invesiment P20,825,264 #1,128,750

Schedule B, Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Partics and
Principal Stockholders (Other Than Related Parties)

Deductions )
Name and Balance as at Amount Amonnt Balance ps at
designation Tanuary 1, 2016 - Additions callected  written off  Current  Nonewrront Frecernber 31, 2016

Not Applicable: The Comp;any has ne receivable from dizcctnré, officer, employees, related parties and
principa! stockholders as at December 31, 20186,

Schiedule C. Amounts of Recetvables and Payable from/to Related Paxties which are Eliminated
during Consolidation Process of Financtal Statements

Deductions

Mame and Balance as at Amount Amonnt Balance a3 at
designaticn January 1, 2016 Additions collseled  written off  Current  Nomourrent December 31, 2018

Not Applicable: The Company has no receivable from/payable to related parties which are
consolidated as at December 31, 2016,

Schedule D. Intangible Assets - Other Assets

Crther changes:

Beginning Charped to cost additions
Deseription balance  Additions atcost . and expenscs {deductions) Ending balance

Not Applicable: The Company has no intangible asset ag at December 31, 2016,

Pagei2
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Schedule E. Long-term Debt

Amount  Amount shown under caption Ambu nt shown under
Title of issue aod type of anthorized  “Cugrent portion of long term caption “Long-term debt”
obligation by indenture__ debt” in related balance sheet in related halance sheet

Mot Applicable: The Company has no Jonp-term debt as at December 31, 2016,

Scheduie F. Indehtedness to Related Parties (Long-termi Loans from Related Parties)

‘ Balance at Balance at
Nare of related party January 1, 2016 December 31, 2016

Not Applicable; The Company has no indebtednass to a related party as at December 31, 2016.

Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Izsuers

Name of ssuing autity of Title of issue of

Senurities guaranteed by the gach class of  Total amount  Amount owned by

Company for which this securitics  goaranieed and  person for which the Nature of
statement is filed guaranteed outstanding statement is filed guarantee

Not Applicable: The Company has no guarantecs of securities of other issucrs as at

December 31, 2016.
~ Schedule H. Capital Stock
- Number of Mumber
shares izsued of shares
and reserved for
cutstanding options,
as shown Warrants, Nuamber
Number underrelated  conversion of shares held Directors,
of shares balance sheet - and other by refated  officers, and
Title of issue authorized caption rights parties employees Qthers
Commoi 10,000 10,000 .- - 5,691 9

Page|3



GMA HOLDINGS, INC, ‘

1L SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EF

INTERPRETATIONS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016

¥Framewor]
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k for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Statements
Conteptual Framework Phase A Objectives and Qualitative

Characteristics
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TECTIVE STANDARDS AND

PIRS Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRS 1
(Revizsed)

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards

Amendraents to PFRS 1 end PAS 27: Cost of an

Investsnent in o Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or

Associate

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Bxemptions for
First-time Adoplers

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Compazative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-iime

Adopters

~

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severs Hyperinflation and
Temoval of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters.

Amendments to PERS I: Government Loans

Amendments to PFRS 1: Botrowing Cosis

Amendment to PFRS 1; Meaning of ‘Effective FFRSs

PFRS 2

Share-baged Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

R RS Y A S

Amendments to PTRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions

Amendments to FFRS 2: Drefinition of Vesting
Condition

Amendments to PFRS 2: Classification and

Measarement of Share-based Paymernt Transactions®

Not Early. Adop

it

]

d

FTERE 3
(Revised)

Business Combinations

Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent
Consideration in a Business Combination

Business Combinations - Scope Bxceptions for Joint
Arrangements

PFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

N

Page |4



Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantes Contracts

Amendmants to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Financiaf
Instruments, with PFRS 4%

Z

ot Easly Adoptad

PFRS §

Non-current Assets Held for 8ale and Discontinued
Operations '

Amendments to PFRS §: Changes in Methods of
Dispogal

PFRE 6

Exploration for end Evaluation of Mineral Resources

FFR8 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassiffention of
Pinancial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFR3 7: Reclassification of
Tinzncial Assats - Effective Date and Transition

ﬂ,\

Amendments to BFRS 7: Improving Disclosures abowt
Financial Instruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures « Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS Y and Transition Disclosures

Amendments to PFRS 7: Discloguras - Servicing
Contracts

R RN

Amendments o PFRS 7:
Applicability of the Amendments to PFR8 7 o
Condensed Interim Financial Statements

TFRS 8

COperating Segments

Amendments fo FFRS §:

Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation
of the Total of the Reportabls Segments® Asscts o the
‘Eatity’s Azsets

Page| S
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Financial Instruments*

Hot Early Adoptcd

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financlal Statements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 2
Investaent Fntities

Amendments to FFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Applying the Consolidation Exception

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

Ahzendmcn’fs to PFRS 11: Aceounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in Joint Operations

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendnients to FFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27

‘| Investiment Bntities

Amendmnents to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28!
Tuvestment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Amendments to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard*

Not Farly Adopted

PFRS 13

Fair Vahte Measurement

Amendement to PFRS 13: Short-term Receivables and
Pgyables

Amendment to PERS 13: Portfolio Bxception

PFRS 14

Regulatory Daferral Acconnts

PIRS 18

Revenue from Contracts with Customers*

Not Barly Adopted

PFRS 16

Leases*

Not Barly Adopted

Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)

PAS 1 (Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

y

Amendment io PAS L: Capital Disstasures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financia)
Tnstruments and Obligetions Arising on Liguidation

Amendments to PAS 1t I‘rescntaﬂon of Ttams of Other
Comprehenswa Incoma

Ammdments to PAS 1: Clarification ofthe
ra,qmrens.ents for comparative information

Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Inftiative

PAS 2

Tnventories
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PAST Statement of Cash Flows
‘| Ameadiment to PAS 7: Disclosure Tnitiative® Net Early Adopted
PAS 8 Accounting Policles, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period
PAS 11 Coustruction Coniracts V4
PAS 12 Ineome Texes
Amendment to PAS 12: Defersed Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets
Amendment 1o PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred
: !
Income Tax Assets for Unvealized Losses™ Not Early Adopted
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, v
Amendments to PAS 16: Classification of servicing 7
equiptient :
Amendment to PAS 16: Propesty, Plant and Equipesent -
Revatuation Method - Proportionete Restatement of ¥
| Accumulated Deprociation
Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and v
Amortization ‘
Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearer Plants o
PAS 17 Leases 4
PAS 18 Revenue
PAS 19 Employee Benefits v
Amendments to PAS 12: Actuarial Gaing and Logses, 7
Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 13 Employee Benefits e
Amend i
(Amended) 1 endments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: /
Employee Contributions
Amendments to PAS 19 Regional Market Tasue 7
Regarding Discount Rate
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of v
Goveroment Assistance
PAS 21 The Bffects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rotes o
Amendment: Net Tnvestment in a Foreign Operation o
PAS 23 o
(Revised) Borrowing Costs o
FAS 24 Related Party Disclostees
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LR RY ot 7ol i G
(Revised) Amendments to PAS 24; Key Management Personnel
PAS 16 Accounting and Reporting by Retiremont Denefit Plans 7
FAR 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
PAS 27 Separate Pinancial Statements
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 27: Tnvestment Entltics <
Amendments to PAS 27: Bquity Method in Saparate s
Financial Statements :
PAS 28 [nvestments in Associates 4
PAS 28 Tnvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures N
(Amended) T ents to PFRS 10, FFRS 12 and PAS 28: 7
Applying the Consolidation Excoption
Amendients to PAS 28: Measuriog an Associate or
s 1o
Joint Venture at Fair Yalue® Not Eax l.y Adopted
PAS 25 Financia! Reporting in Hyperinflationaty Bconomies v
PAS 31 Triterests in Joint Ventures v
PAS 32 | Financial Instraments: Disclosure and Presentation
Amendments 1o PAS 32 aud PAS 1: Pattabls Financtdl
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidatien
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Tssues N4
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financiai Assets and
Financiat Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 32: Tax offect of distribution to
holders of equity Instruments
PAS 33 Earnings per Share
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v
Amendments ta PAS 34: Tnterim financial reporting
and segment information for total assets and o
liabilities
Amendments 10 PAS 34: Disclosure of Tnformatlon v
“Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report
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Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Centingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Revaluation
Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Depraciation / Amortizatien

Amendment to PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortization

PAS 39

Pinancial Instruments: Recognition and Measwrement

Amerdments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hed ge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Arcendments to PAS 39 The Fair Value Option

Awmendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guasanice Contrasts

S oEA]N

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRE8 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets

-

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRE 7: Reclassification of
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Trapsition

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation 1FRIC ¢ and
PAS 39; Bmbedded Derivatives

Amsndment to PAS 30: Bligible Hedged Itents

Amendment to PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40

Investment Property

NEENENEE NS

Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifying the
Interretationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when
Classifying Property as Investment Property of
Owner-Qccupied Property

Amendments to PAS 40: Transfors of Investment

Property®

Not Earty Adopted
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PAS 4] Agricultura
Amendment to FAS 16 and PAS 41: Bearor Plants wf

Inferpretations

FRIC 1 Changes in Exlsting Decommissioning, Restoration and Vs
Similar Liabilitics

IFRIC 2 Metmbers' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar 7
Tnstruments ‘ _

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Containg & Lease v

TFRIC 8 Rights te Inferests arfsing from Decommissioning, s
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific J
Markat - Waste Electricat and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC T Applying the Restatement A pproach under PAS 25 v
Financiz! Reporting in Hyperinflationary Reonomies

LERIC 9 Renssessment of Embedded Detfvatives <
Amendments to Philippine Jaterpretation [FRIC Y and S
PAS 3% Embeddad Derivatives

IFRIC 16 Toterim Financial Reporting and fmpairment e

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangemerts ‘ v

IFRIC 13 Customer Lovally Programmes of

IFRIC 14 The Limit on g Defined Benefit Asset, Mirndmun s
Fanding Requirements and thelr Interaction :
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC 14, s
Prepaymertts of a Minimum Fuading Requirement

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Censtiuction of Real Fatate™ Mot Barly Adoptad

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment ina Foreign Operation v

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 4

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers o

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabifities with Equity v
Instruments

FRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Productinn Phase of a Surfice v
Mine

IFRIC 21 Levies

FRIC Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance .

IFRIC 22 ‘c}rmﬂgn Gu- ney Transactions and Advancs Not Early Adopted
Consideration®

SIC 7 Tntroduction of the Euro o

SiC Government Assisiance - No Spe:cific Relation to J
Operating Activitios
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SIC 15 7

SIC 25 Income Taxes - Changes i the Tax Status of an Entity s
or its Sharcholders

BIC 27 Evaluating the Scbstanee of Transactlons lrvolving the v
Legal Form of a Lense

510129 Service Concesston Arrangements: Disclosures o

5IC 31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Tnvolving Adverti sing v
Services

SIC 32 Tntrngible Assess - Web Site Costs o

* Standurds and interpratations which will become gffective subsequent fo December 31, 2016,

Note: Standards and interpretation
were adopted but the entity has no siga

December 31,2016,

s tagged ag “Not Applicable” are those standards and interpretations which
Geant covered transaction as st and for the year endad
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

1. RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DEC LARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Unabpropria‘ted retained carnings, beginning P675,607

Net income during the year closed to refained carnings 1,032,216

Dividend declaration during the year {(600,000)
P1,107,223

Retained earnings - available for dividend daclaration as at December 31, 2016
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

IV. SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

Decenber 31
Financial Ratios Deseription 2016 2015
Currentliquidity ratio  Current assets over current liabilities 0.58 0.58
Assel to equity ratio Total assats over total equity 47.18 83.06
Debt {0 equity ratio Total liabilities over total equity 46.18 82.06
Years ended December
Financial Ratlos Deseription 2016 2015 2014

Retwrn on equity  Net income over total sxquity

Return on asset Net incorme over {otal assets

EBITDNA margin  Barnings before interest, tax and depreciation
and amortization over toial revenue

100% 109%  30%
2% 1% 1%

58%  45% 37%
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CERTIFICATION

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of
the 1987 Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors,
Independent Directors and Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are
elected as public servants and or appointed in any government
agency, local or foreign, without authority of law.

Issued ‘thi?ﬁ?_i}d%yzgp 2017.

ROBERTO O.PAREL

Compliance Officer
GMA Holdings, Inc.




CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 11 Panay Avenue, Quezon City, after having been
duly sworn to in accordance with law do hereby declare that:

1

director since 2007.

] am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government-Owned and
Controlled Corporation): .

fﬂj—ﬂwfﬁﬁﬂﬁ
COMPANY/ORGANIZATION OSITICN/RELATIONSHIP "PERIOD OF
‘ SERVICE

See attached .
e

_’__MM

R
L}__/__//J,I/
| possess all the qualification and none of the disqualifications to serve as afl Independent
Director of GMA Holdings, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code,
its ITmplementing Rules and Regulations and other SEC issuances.

o the following director/officer/substantial shareholder of GMA Holdings, Inc. and

] am related
provided under Rufe 38.2.3 of the

its subsidiaries and affiliates other than the relationship
Securities Regulation Code. (where applicable).

NAME OF DIRECTOR/ COMPANY NATURE OF

OFFICER/ | | RELATIONSHIP

SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDER

MNone :

To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending eriminal or administrative

investigation or proceeding.

I OFFENSE T TRIBUNALOR | STATUS
CHARGED/INVESTIGATED AGENCY
| INVOLVED

.

MNone -

[ am a nominee for independent d_il‘ecior"of GMA Holdings, Inc. and have been its independent



6. 1 have the required writlen of consent from the President of the Cultural Center of the Philippines
to be an independent director in GMiA Holdings, Inc. pursuant to Office. of the President
Memorandum Circular No. 17 and Section 12, Rule X VI of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

ibilities as independent director

7. 1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and respons
les and Regulations, Code of

under the Securities Regulation Code and its implementing Ru
Corporate Governance and other SEC Issuances.

. 1 shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA Holdings, Inc. of any changes in the .
abovementioned information within five days from its occutrence.

Done, this 27" day of March, 2017 at Makati City

MAR 3 18,

éf:{“ aft t

P

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before iR 370 3f¥Tor March, 2017 at Makati City, affiant
personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Philippine Passport No. EC3123727 issued at

Manila on 7 January 2015.

n-? m F ‘i:ﬁ.q ,ﬁ IL E.{ A

AHTY. VERL
NOTARY PUBLIC FOR MAKAT CITY
2

Doc. No.

Page No.

BOOk NO. MOLE 3 |-C,;41 3
Series of 2017. FPORD 253 J00F

By, CENTE
JOFTER 5T, MARATECITY



JAIME C. LAYA, Ph.D.
March 27, 2017

Chairman and President - Philippine Trust Compary (Phiftrust Bank)

Chairman - Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, fnc., Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc.

independent Director, Philippine AXA Life Insurance Co., Inc., GMA Network, Inc., GMA Holdings, Inc.,
Ayala Land, Inc., Manila Water Company, Inc., Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation

Trustee, Cultural Center of the Philippines, St. Paul University -- Quezon City, Metropolitan Museumn of
Manila, Yuchengoo Museum, Ayala Foundation, Inc., and others

Director, Various family corporations

Columnist, Manila Bulletin

Past Positions - Government

Minister of Education, Culture and Sports and Chairman, University of the Philippines and other state uni-

versities and colleges, 1984-86

Minister of the Budget, 197 5-81
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 198 1-84

Chaijrman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001
Professor of Business Administration and Dean, College of Business Adminisiration, University of the

Philippines, 1957-78 _ .
Action Officer, Intramuros Administration {old city restoration project), 1979-86

Recent Past Positions — Private Sector

Founder and Chairman, Laya Mananghayz & Co., Certified Public Accountants and Management Consult-

ants (Member, KPMG International), 1986-2004.

Director and Trustee of various organizations —
Association of Certified Public Accountants in Private Practice, and others

FEducation

B.3.B.A. (accounting; maghnda cum laude), University of the Philippines, 1957
M.S. (industrial management), Georgia Institute of Technology, 1961

Ph.D. (financial management), Stanford University, 1966

Honors

Orden del Mérito Civil (rank of Encomienda de Niimero}, Spain, 2014

Distinguished Achievement Award, Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 2008

{ ifetime Achievement Award, Association of Certified Public Accountants in Public Practice, 2007
Dactor of Laws {honoris causa), Philippine Womens’ University, 1983 :

Dactor of Humanities (honoris causa), Mindanao State University, 1980
Outstanding CPA in Government, Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants, 1979

Ten Outstanding Young Men (TOYM) Awardee (Business Education), 1967

Professional Qualification

Certified Public Accountant, 1957 examination (8" place) .

y\i' .\“»‘\‘\\
personal Information N A
:_ e \-..‘;';" ,’: H
Born January 8, 1939 ‘ ‘\\ /
“ _

Manila Polo Club, Bankers Association of the Philippines,
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIREGTOR

|, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 1203 |

Acacia Street, Damarifas Village, Makati City, sfter having been duly sworn 10, in
accordance with law, do hereby declare that. :

1.

Relationship - Service
GMA Network, Inc. Independent Director 2007 - present :
FEirst Philippine Holdings Corperation Independent Director 2007 - present |
Meltro Pacific \nvestments Corporation Independent Director 2007 - present

Manila Electiic Company Independent Director | 2008 - present
Robinsons Land Gorporation

Petron Corporation Independent Director 2010 - present
Asian Terminals, Inc. Independent Director 2010 - present
Philippine Long Distance Tel. Co. Independent Director | 2013 - present
Jollibee Foods Corporation Non-Exacutive Director 2012 - present
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Compan Senior Adviser 2007 - present
Doubie Dragon Properties Corperation | Adviser 2014 - present
Bank of the Philippine Islands Member Advisory Council | 2016 - present

| am-a nominee for independent director of GMA HOLDINGS, ING. and have
been its independent director since 2009;

‘| am affiliated with the foilowing listed companies of organizations:

M - —
Company/Organization Position/ Period of

Independent Director 2008 - present

)

(For my full bic-data, log on tomy personal website: cipanganiban.com

| possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as ar
Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC.. as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and

ather SEC issuances.

To the bast of my knowledge, | am net related to any director/officer/substantial

~ shareholder of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding.

To the best of my knowledge, | am neither an officer nor an employee of any

government agency of government--owned and controlled corporation.

| shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing
Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate (Governance and other SEC

' |ssuances.

| shall inform the Corporate Sacretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes
in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.



Done this ___ day of March, 2017 at Makati Gity.

ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN

Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWO

CMAR 30 T

RN to before me this day of March 2017 at Makati City,

his Diplomatic Passport

affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me

Number DE0O013400 issued on December 15, 2015 by the DEA, Manila and will expire

on December 14, 2020,

Doc. No. K{/l;
Page No. r_! o

Book No. 0‘74'}’
Series of 2017.

ATTY, VECILIO M. BATALLA
MOTARY PUBLIC FOW MAKATI CITY

ROL

APPT. NG, W88

410713
SROPARE 28,2007



